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PART–A
1. The Company shall go for Ini�al Public Offer (IPO) for 16,000,000 ordinary shares of Tk. 10.00 each at par from 

which 15% of securi�es will be reserved for the employees of the company and remaining 85% of securi�es will 
be reserved for Eligible Investors (EIs) and General Public (GP) including NRB totaling to BDT.160,000,000/- (taka 
sixteen crore)following the Securi�es and Exchange Ordinance, 1969,the Bangladesh Securi�es and Exchange 
Commission (Public Issue) Rules, 2015, the Depository Act, 1999 and rules made there under.

2. The abridged version of the prospectus, as approved and ve�ed by the Commission, shall be published by the 
issuer in 4 (Four) na�onal daily newspapers (two in Bangla and two in English), within 05(five) working days 
from the date of issuance of this consent le�er. The issuer shall post the full prospectus ve�ed by the Commis-
sion, in the issuer’s website and shall also put on the websites of the Commission, stock exchanges, and the 
issue managers, within 2 (two) working days of publica�on of abridged version of prospectus in the newspaper 
and shall remain posted �ll the closure of the subscrip�on list. The issuer shall submit to the Commission, the 
stock exchanges and the issue manager a diske�e containing the text of the ve�ed prospectus in “MS -Word” 
format.

3. The company shall submit 40 (Forty) copies of the printed prospectus to the Commission for official record 
within 05 (Five) working days from the date of publica�on of the abridged version of the prospectus in the 
newspapers.

4. The issuer company and the issue manager shall ensure transmission of the prospectus and its abridged version 
for NRBs through email to the Bangladesh Embassies and Missions abroad within 05 (Five) working days from 
the date of publica�on of the abridged version of the prospectus in the newspapers. A compliance report shall 
be submi�ed in this respect to the Commission jointly by the Issuer and the Issue Manager within 02 (Two) 
working days from the date of publica�on of the abridged version of the prospectus in the newspapers.

5. The following declara�on shall be made by the company in the prospectus, namely: -

“Declara�on about Lis�ng of Shares with the stock exchange (s):

None of the stock exchange(s), if for any reason, grants lis�ng within 20 (twenty) working days from the closure 
of subscrip�on, any allotment in terms of this prospectus shall be void and the company shall refund the 
subscrip�on money within 15 (Fi�een) days from the date of refusal for lis�ng by the stock exchanges, or from 
the date of expiry of the said 20 (twenty) working days, as the case may be. 

DISCLOSURE IN RESPECT OF ISSUANCE OF SECURITY IN DEMAT FORM:
As per provisions of the Depository Act, 1999 and regula�ons made there under, share of the Company will be 
issued in dematerialized form only and for this purpose Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited.will sign an agreement 
with the Central Depository Bangladesh Limited (CDBL). Therefore, all transfers, transmissions, spli�ng or 
conversions will take place on the Central Depository Bangladesh Limited system and any further issuance of 
shares (including rights and bonus) will also be issued in dematerialized form only.
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In case of non-refund of the subscrip�on money within the aforesaid 15 (Fi�een) days, the Directors of the 
company, in addi�on to the issuer company, shall be collec�vely and severally liable for refund of the subscrip�on 
money, with interest at the rate of 2% (two percent) above the prevailing bank rate, to the concerned subscribers. 

The issue manager, in addi�on to the issuer company, shall ensure due compliance of the above-men�oned 
condi�ons and shall submit compliance report thereon to the Commission within 7 (Seven) days of expiry of the 
aforesaid 15 (Fi�een) days’ �me period allowed for refund of the subscrip�on money.”

The stock exchanges shall complete the lis�ng procedure and start of trading of securi�es within 20 (Twenty) 
working days from the closure of subscrip�on.

6. Each General Public applicants (without NRB) and Non-resident Bangladeshi (NRB) applicants who intends to 
submit applica�on through the Electronic Subscrip�on System (ESS) of the exchange(s) shall maintain a 
minimum investment of Tk. 50,000/- (Taka Fi�y thousand only) and Tk. 1,00,000/- (Taka One lakh only) 
respec�vely in the listed securi�es (matured securi�es) including open end mutual fundsat market price (the 
close price of both Exchanges whichever is higher) as on the end of a working day which is immediately 
preceded by 5 (five) working days from the first day of star�ng the subscrip�on. The applica�on amount shall 
be Tk.10,000/- (Taka ten thousand only). Exchanges shall send the list of BO Accounts who have applied in the 
IPO to the Central Depository Bangladesh Limited (CDBL). CDBL shall verify the list of BO Accounts provided by 
the Exchanges regarding investment of general applicants in listed securi�es.

7. The IPO shall stand cancelled in case of under-subscrip�on collec�vely above 35%. In such an event, the issuer 
and issue manger shall inform the Commission within 02 (two) working days and release the subscrip�on 
money within 07 (seven) working days a�er receiving verifica�on report from CDBL and the informa�on from 
exchanges regarding subscrip�on.

8. In case of under-subscrip�on under any of sub-categories of eligible investors’ category or general public category,
the unsubscribed por�on shall be added to other sub-category of the same category. In case of over subscrip�on 
in the general public category, the securi�es shall be allo�ed on pro-rata basis, any frac�on shall be considered 
to the nearest integer and accumulated frac�onal securi�es shall be allo�ed on random basis.

9. An applicant cannot submit more than two applica�ons, one in his/her own name and the other jointly with 
another person. In case, an applicant submits more than two applica�ons, all applica�ons shall be treated as 
invalid and shall not be considered for allotment purpose. In addi�on, 15% (fi�een) of the applica�on money 
shall be forfeited and deposited to the Commission by the exchange(s) and the balance amount shall be 
refunded to the applicant.

10. The applicants who have applied for more than two applica�ons using same bank account, their applica�ons
shall not be considered for allotment purpose. In addi�on, 15% of their subscrip�on money shall be forfeited 
and deposited to the Commission by the exchange(s). The balance amount shall be refunded to the applicants.

11. Making of any false statement in the applica�on or supplying of incorrect informa�on therein or suppressing 
any relevant informa�on in the applica�on shall make the applica�on liable to rejec�on and subject to forfeiture 
of 25% of the applica�on money and/or forfeiture of share (unit) before or a�er issuance of the same by the 
issuer. The said forfeited applica�on money or sale proceeds of forfeited shares (unit) shall be deposited to the 
Commission by the exchange(s). This is in addi�on to any other penal�es as may be provided for by the law.

12. The company shall furnish the list of allotees to the Commission and the stock exchange(s) simultaneously in 
which the shares will be listed, within 24 (Twenty-Four) hours of allotment.
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13. Shares arenot allo�ed at the �me of according this consent, but allo�ed a�er lis�ng, in favor of sponsors, directors 
or shareholders having 10% or more shares, other than alterna�ve investment funds, through stock dividends, 
shall be subject to a lock-in period of 02(two) years from the date of issuance of the prospectus.

14. If any share of Sponsors/Directors/Promoters is in paper format, it shall be handed over to securi�es custodian 
registered with the Commission and shall remain held �ll comple�on of lock-in period and the name of the 
securi�es custodian shall be furnished to the Commission jointly by the issuer and issue manager, along with a 
confirma�on thereof from the custodian, within one week of lis�ng of the shares with the stock exchange(s). 
Otherwise, those shares (shares of Sponsors/ Directors/ Promoters) can be dematerialized and shall remain in 
lock-in under CDBL system and the issuer shall submit a dematerializa�on confirma�on report generated by 
CDBL system and a�ested by Managing Director of the company along with the lock-in confirma�on to the 
Commission within one week of lis�ng of the shares with the stock exchange(s). In respect of shares other than 
Sponsors/Directors/Promoters, the issuer will ensure their lock-in of those shares and submit a statement to 
this effect to the Commission.

15. The company shall not declare, approve or distribute any dividend/bonus shares before lis�ng with any Exchange
from the date of this le�er.

16. The company shall not engage itself into any merger/amalgama�on or acquisi�on ac�vi�es without taking “No 
Objec�on” from the Commission, on the scheme of the said merger/amalgama�on or acquisi�on, as recommended 
by the Board of Directors, before approval by the shareholders in General Mee�ng.

17. Each Eligible Investor (EI) who intends to submit applica�on through the Electronic Subscrip�on System (ESS) of 
the exchange(s) shall maintain a minimum investment of Tk. 1,50,00,000.00 (Taka one crore fi�y lac only) for 
approved pension funds, recognized provident funds and approved gratuity fund and other EIs of Tk. 
3,00,00,000.00 (Taka three crore only) in the listed securi�es (matured securi�es)including open end mutual 
funds at market price (the close price of both Exchanges whichever is higher) as on the end of a working day 
which is immediately preceded by 5 (five) working days from the first day of star�ng the subscrip�on.Exchanges 
shall send the list of BO Accounts who have applied in the IPO to the Central Depository Bangladesh Limited 
(CDBL). CDBL shall send a report to the Exchanges on the basis of the list of BO Accounts provided by the 
Exchanges regarding holding of EIs in listed securi�es and the Exchange shall ensure the compliance in this 
regard.

18. The company shall not increase its paid-up capital through issuance of bonus shares for next four (4) years from 
the first trading day at the exchange(s).

19. The company shall follow dividend policy as per the projec�on given in the Prospectus.

20. The company shall maintain all the requirement of Insurance Act 2010 and other applicable rules and regula�ons
for their opera�on.

PART–B
Applica�on Process

Step-1 (Applicant):
1. An applicant for public issue of securi�es shall submit an applica�on/buy instruc�on to the Stockbroker/ Merchant

Banker where the applicant maintains customer account, within the cut-off date (i.e., the subscrip�on closing 
date), which shall be the 25th (twenty fi�h) working day from the date of publica�on of an abridged version of 
the prospectus.
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2. The applica�on/buy instruc�on may be submi�ed in prescribed paper or electronic form, which shall contain 
the Customer ID, Name, BO Account Number, Total Amount and Category of the Applicant. 

a)  Eligible investors shall submit an applica�on through the electronic subscrip�on system of the exchange(s) 
and deposit the full amount intended to subscribe by the method as determined by exchange(s).

b)  The General Public and Non-resident Bangladeshi (NRB) applicants shall submit the applica�on in the 
electronic subscrip�on system of the exchange(s) through the Stockbrokers/Merchant Bankers where the 
applicant maintains customer account.

Step-2 (Intermediary):
3. The registered Stock broker/Merchant Banker in the ESS shall:

a)  Post the amount separately in the customer account equivalent to the applica�on money;

 b)  Accumulate all the applica�ons/buy instruc�ons received up to the cut-off date and transfer the amount to 
their respec�ve Consolidated Customer Account;

4. The registered Stockbroker/Merchant Banker in the ESS shall prepare category wise lists of the applicants 
containing Customer ID, Name, BO Account Number and within 3 (three) working days from the cut-off date, 
upload to the ESS, the lists of applicants in electronic (text format with �lde ‘~’ separator) format, deposit the 
full amount received from the General Public and Non-Resident Bangladeshi (NRB) applicants by the method as 
determined by exchange(s).   

5. The applica�on/buy instruc�ons shall be preserved by the Stock broker/Merchant Bankers up to 6 (six) months 
from lis�ng of the securi�es with the exchange.

6. The Exchanges shall prepare a consolidated list of the applica�ons and send the applicants’ BOIDs in electronic 
(text) format in a CDROM to CDBL for verifica�on on the next working day.  CDBL shall verify the BOIDs as to 
whether the BO accounts of the applicants are ac�ve or not, verify more than two applica�ons by an individual; 
verify more than two applica�ons using same bank account and investment criteria.

7. On the next working day, CDBL shall provide the Exchanges with an updated database of the applicants containing
BO Account Number, Name, Addresses, Parent s’ Name and Joint Account informa�on along with the verifica�on 
report.

8. A�er receiving verifica�on report and informa�on from CDBL, the Exchanges shall scru�nize the applica�ons, 
prepare category wise consolidated lists of valid and invalid applica�ons within 5 (five) working days.

9. Within next working day, the Exchanges shall provide the Commission, Issuer and Issue Manager with the so� 
copy of subscrip�on result.

Step-3 (Issuer):
10. The Issuer and issue manager shall post the final status of subscrip�on on their websites within 6 (six) hours 

and on the websites of the Commission and Exchanges within 12 (twelve) hours of receiving informa�on by the 
Commission and the Exchanges.

11. Within 3 (three) working days of receipt of the subscrip�on result, the Issuer and Exchanges shall:
a) Process pro-rata allotment of securi�es to the General Public and Non-Resident Bangladeshi (NRB) applicants;
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b) Prepare category wise lists of invalid applicants who are subject to penal provisions as per condi�ons of the 
consent le�er issued by the Commission in electronic (text format with �lde ‘~’ separator) format men�oning 
the penalty amount against each applicant;

c) Issuer shall issue allotment le�ers in the names of allo�ees in electronic format and

d) Issuer shall credit the allo�ed shares to the respec�ve BO accounts on the basis of allotment data (BOID and 
number of securi�es) via their CDBL VeDAS Terminal.

12. 15% Private Offer to employees of the Issuer:
According to the compliance with the provisions of the Commission’s No�fica�on No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2009-
193/27/Admin/127 dated 19 July 2021, applica�on process of the ‘employees & others’ category of the issuer 
in the ini�al public offering (IPO) through ESS of the Exchanges shall be conducted as follows: 

a. The issuer shall upload the list of the exis�ng employees in the electronic subscrip�on system of the exchange(s)
in electronic (text format with �lde ‘~’ separator) format containing Customer ID, Name (as per BO ID), BO ID, 
Total Quan�ty, Total Amount, Category of the Applicant, NID, Employee ID, Service Start Date and Designa�on.

b. The exis�ng employees of the issuer shall submit applica�on in the electronic subscrip�on system of the 
exchange(s) through the Stockbrokers/Merchant Bankers where the applicant maintains customer account.

c. The registered Stockbroker/Merchant Banker in the ESS shall upload the lists of exis�ng employees of the 
issuer in electronic (text format with �lde ‘~’ separator) format.   

d. The Exchanges shall verify (name, BO ID, amount, duplicate, etc) the applica�ons of exis�ng employees and 
send the valid BOIDs in electronic (text) format to CDBL for verifica�on. CDBL shall verify the BOIDs as to 
whether the BO accounts of the applicants are ac�ve or not.

e. CDBL shall provide the Exchanges with an updated database of the applicants containing BO Account Number,
Name, Addresses, Parent s’ Name and Joint Account informa�on along with the verifica�on report.

f. The Exis�ng employees of the issuer whose applica�ons are valid and ac�ve will be allo�ed securi�es as per 
their applied quan��es, subject to a lock-in period of 2 (two) years from the first trading day at the 
exchanges.

Step-4 (Intermediary):
13. On the next working day, Exchanges shall:

a) remit the number of allo�ed applicants to the Issuer’s respec�ve Escrow Account opened for subscrip�on 
purpose;

b) send the penalty amount who are subject to penal provisions to the Issuer’s respec�ve Escrow Accounts 
along with a list; and

c) Distribute the informa�on and allotment le�ers to the stock broker/Merchant Bankers concerned in electronic 
format with a request to refund the balance applica�on money.

14. On the next working day of receiving the documents from the Exchanges, the Stockbrokers/Merchant Bankers 
shall refund the excess applica�on money in the customer accounts and inform the applicants about allotment 
of securi�es.
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Miscellaneous:
15. The Issuer, Issue Manager(s), Stockbrokers, Merchant Bankers and the Exchanges shall ensure compliance of 

the above.

16. The Issuer shall pay the costs related to process the Eligible Investors allotment if claimed by the Exchange 
concerned up to an amount of Tk. 2,00,000/- (Taka Two Lac) only and Tk. 8,00,000/- (Taka Eight Lac) only for 
processing the applica�ons of General Public and Non-Resident Bangladeshi (NRB) applicants.

17. The Stockbroker/Merchant Bankers shall be en�tled to a service charge of Tk. 5/- (Taka five) only per applica�on 
irrespec�ve of the amount or category for the service provided �ll withdrawal of the money. The service charge 
shall be paid by the applicant at the �me of submi�ng an applica�on.

18. The Exchanges shall provide the Issuer with a statement of the remi�ance. 

19. The Issuer shall send the penalty amount to the Commission through a bank dra�/payment order issued in 
favor of the Bangladesh Securi�es and Exchange Commission.  

20. The concerned Exchanges are authorized to se�le any complaints and take necessary ac�ons against any 
Stockbroker/Merchant Banker in case of viola�on of any provision of the public issue applica�on process with 
in�ma�on to the Commission.   

PART–C
1. The issue manager(s) shall carefully examine and compare the published prospectus and its abridged version on 

the date of publica�on with the copies ve�ed by the Commission. If any discrepancy is found, both the issuer 
and the issue manager shall jointly publish a corrigendum immediately in the same newspapers concerned, 
simultaneously endorsing copies thereof to the Commission and the Exchanges concerned. In this regard, the 
issue manager(s) shall submit a compliance report to the Commission within 5 working days from the date of 
such publica�ons.

2. The fund collected through Ini�al Public Offer shall not be u�lized prior to lis�ng with the Exchange(s) and that 
u�liza�on of the said fund shall be affected through banking channel, i.e. through account payee cheque, pay 
order or bank dra�s etc.

3. The company shall furnish status report on u�liza�on of Public Offering proceeds audited by foreign affiliated 
auditors and authen�cated by the board of directors to the Commission and the Exchanges within 15 (Fi�een) 
days of the closing of each quarter un�l such fund is fully u�lized, as men�oned in the schedule contained in the 
prospectus. The issuer shall simultaneously post the status report in its website and Exchanges shall also post 
the same in company informa�on contained in websites of the Exchanges. In the event of any irregularity or 
inconsistency, the Commission may employ or engage any person to examine whether the issuer has u�lized 
the proceeds for the purpose disclosed in the prospectus.

4. While audi�ng the u�liza�on of IPO proceeds, the auditors will perform their jobs under the following terms of 
reference (TOR) and confirm the same in their report/cer�ficate:

(a) Whether IPO proceeds have been u�lized for the purposes/heads as specified in the    prospectus;

(b) Whether IPO proceeds have been u�lized in line with the condi�on (if any) of the Commission’s consent 
le�er;
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(c)  Whether u�liza�on of IPO proceeds have been completed within the �me schedule/implementa�on schedule
as specified in the published prospectus;

(d) Whether u�liza�on of IPO proceeds is accurate and for the purpose of the company as men�oned/specified 
in the published prospectus; and

(e) The auditors should also confirm that: (i) assets have been procured/imported/constructed maintaining 
proper/required procedure as well as at reasonable price; and (ii) auditors’ report has been made on verifi-
ca�on of all necessary documents/papers/vouchers in support of IPO proceeds making reconcilia�on with 
Bank Statement.

5. All transac�ons, excluding pe�y cash expenses, shall be effec�ve by crossed cheques or bank transfers. 

6. Proceeds of the Ini�al Public offer shall not be transferred to any other bank account before lis�ng with the 
Exchange(s). The proceeds shall not be used for any purpose other than those specified in the prospectus 
without any valid ground. Any devia�on in this respect of purpose and �memust have prior approval of at least 
51% of the public shareholders, other than sponsors and directors, in a general mee�ng through a Board 
approved agenda thereon and due no�fica�on to the shareholders. Before the said general mee�ng, such 
devia�on as recommended by the Board of Directors shall be published as price-sensi�ve informa�on with 
detailed descrip�on and reasons for such devia�on. If approved by the shareholders, the mee�ng resolu�on 
shall be submi�ed to the Commission along with reasonable explana�ons and the decision shall be published 
as price-sensi�ve informa�on.

7. If any quarter of the financial year-end a�er publica�on of the abridged version of prospectus and before lis�ng 
of its securi�es with any exchange, the company shall disseminate/transmit/submit the said quarterly financial 
statements in accordance with the Commission’s No�fica�on BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/208/Admin/81 dated 
20 June 2018 and Rules 15 of the Securi�es and Exchange Rules, 2020.

8. In the event of arising issues concerning Price Sensi�ve Informa�on as defined under the wmwKDwiwUR I G·‡PÄ 
Kwgkb (myweav‡fvMxe¨emvwbwl×KiY) wewagvjv1995 a�er publica�on of the abridged version of prospectus and before 
lis�ng of its securi�es with anyexchange, the company shall disseminate/transmit/submit the informa�on as 
price sensi�ve in accordance with the Commission’s No�fica�on No. SEC/SRMI/200-953/1950 dated October 
24, 2000.

PART–D
1. As per provision of the Depository Act, 1999 & Regula�ons made thereunder, shares will only be issued in 

dematerialized condi�on. All transfer/transmission/spli�ng will take place in the depository system of Central 
Depository Bangladesh Limited (CDBL) and any further issuance of shares (including rights/bonus) will be made 
in dematerialized form only.

2. The issuer and the issue manager shall ensure due compliance of all the above condi�ons, the ‘Bangladesh 
Securi�es and Exchange Commission (Public Issue) Rules, 2015’ and the lis�ng regula�ons of the Exchanges;
Provided that the Board of Directors of the issuer along with the Issue Manager(s) shall conduct a quarterly 
mee�ng with the Capital Issue Department of the Commission regarding compliance status of its business 
plan as men�oned in the Prospectus.

3. The Commission may impose further condi�ons/restric�ons etc. from �me to �me as and when considered 
necessary which shall also be binding upon the issuer company.
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c) Major terms and condi�ons of the underwri�ng agreements.

As per guideline of Bangladesh Securi�es and Exchanges Commission, 35% of total securi�es shall have to be 
underwri�en on a firm commitment basis by the underwriter(s), subject to the major terms stated bellow:

(i) The IPO shall stand cancelled if at least 65% in any category of the IPO is not subscribed.

(ii) In case of under subscrip�on in any category by up to 35% of the IPO the un-subscribed securi�es shall be taken 
up by the underwriters.

(iii) Notwithstanding anything contained in the agreement in case of inconsistency between the provision of the 
agreement and the Bangladesh Securi�es and Exchange Commission (Public Issue) Rules, 2015, the Public Issue 
Rules shall prevail.

(iv) Prior to publica�on of the prospectus, the Company shall have obtained consent from the Bangladesh Securi-
�es and Exchange Commission permi�ng the issue as described in Ar�cle 2.01 and providing for payment of 
underwri�ng commission 0.50% on the amount underwri�en.

(v) The Issuer shall within 10 (Ten) days of the closure of subscrip�on call upon the underwriter in wri�ng with a 
copy of said wri�ng to the Bangladesh Securi�es and Exchange Commission, to subscribe for the shares not 
subscribed by the closing date and to pay for in cash in full for such unsubscribed shares within 15 (Fi�een) days 
of the date of said no�ce and the said amount shall have to be credited into shares subscrip�on account within 
the said period.

(vi) In any case within 7 (seven) days a�er the expiry of the aforesaid 15 (fi�een) days, the Company shall send 
proof of subscrip�on and payment by the Underwriters to the Commission.

In the case of failure by the underwriter to pay for the shares within the s�pulated �me, the Company/Issuer 
will be under no obliga�on to pay any underwri�ng commission under this Agreement.
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(xi) The details of the aggregate shareholding of the sponsors and directors, the aggregate number of speci-
fied securi�es purchased or sold or otherwise transferred by the sponsor and/or by the directors of the 
issuer and their related par�es within six months immediate preceding the date of filing the prospectus;

Aggregate shareholding of the Sponsors and Directors:

Transferred by the sponsor and/or by the directors of the issuer:
Fllowing shares have beentransferred by the sponsor and/or by the directors of the Trust Islami Life Insurance 
Limited and their related par�es within six months immediate preceding the date of filing the prospectus.
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(xii) The name and address of any person who owns, beneficially or of record, 5% or more of the securi�es of the 
issuer, indica�ng the amount of securi�es owned, whether they are owned beneficially or of record, and the 
percentage of the securi�es represented by such ownership including number of equity shares which they 
would be en�tled to upon exercise of warrant, op�on or right to convert any conver�ble instrument

There is no event or intent of exercising warrant, op�on or right to convert any conver�ble instrument.



Prospectus - 39

TRUST ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LTD.



Prospectus - 40

TRUST ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LTD.



Prospectus - 41

TRUST ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LTD.

Past trends and future prospects regarding exports (if applicable) and local market, demand and supply forecasts 
for the sector in which the product is included with source of data:

Last 5 years collec�on of insurance premium of Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited (TILIL):

Future prospects: A�er libera�on of Bangladesh in 1971, for the reforma�on of war-damaged economy the 
then government took control of all exis�ng insurance companies at that �me and na�onalized them on 
August 8, 1972. In the year 1973 the government two insurance ins�tu�ons Jibon Bima Corpora�on (JBC) and 
Shadharan Bima Corpora�on (SBC) breaking all those insurance companies. Later with the objec�ve of the 
development and expansion of insurance industry government gave opportunity to establish insurance compa-
nies in private sector. As a result, there are 77 insurance companies including JBC and SBC (46 general and 31 
life insurance companies) are opera�ng insurance business in the country at present. If we consider the insur-
able life and property of huge popula�on most of their life and property have not come under insurance cover-
age. So, the sector is huge poten�ality for the expansion with the awareness of mass people, development of 
industrializa�on, trade and commerce, import- export etc. The government has given more a�en�on to this 
sector and working to bring this sector from tradi�onal trend to moderniza�on through taking different 
reforma�ve programs and rules-regula�on to regularize this sector of the economy. As a part of that Insurance 
Development and Regulatory Authority (IDRA) was formed and it has been strengthening more at present by 
the Government. So, there is good prospect of this sector. (Source: Na�onal Insurance Policy 2014). TILIL 
provides non-life Insurance service only in Bangladesh and it has no plan to provide insurance service globally 
in near future.

(vi) If the issuer has more than one product or service, the rela�ve contribu�on to sales and income of each 
product or service that accounts for more than 10% of the company’s total revenues;

(vii) Descrip�on of associates, subsidiary and holding company of the issuer and core areas of business thereof;
 Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited has noassociates, subsidiary and holding company.

(viii) How the products or services are distributed with details of the distribu�on channel. Export possibili�es and 
export obliga�ons;

Distribu�on Channel
The final product reaches to the buyers from our Head office and branches through the following channel of 
distribu�on
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(xvi) Descrip�on of any material patents, trademarks, licenses orroyalty agreements;
The Company neither obtained any Patent Right/Trademarks nor signed any royalty agreement with any party. 
However, it has several regulatory licenses and cer�ficate in order to con�nue its opera�on.
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(i) Loca�on and area of the land, building, principal plants andother property of the company and the condi�on thereof;
The company has no land and principal plant under its ownership except men�oned property in the fixed asset 
schedule.

(ii) Whether the property is owned by the company or taken onlease;
 The company has no land under its ownership.

(iii) Dates of purchase, last payment date of current rent ((LvRbv) and muta�on date of lands, deed value and other 
costsincluding details of land development cost, if any  and current use thereof;
The company has no land under its ownership.

(iv) The names of the persons from whom the lands has beenacquired or proposed to be acquired along with the 
cost ofacquisi�on and rela�on, if any, of such persons to the issueror any sponsor or director thereof;
The company does not owned any land property to disclose.

(v) Details of whether the issuer has received all the approvalspertaining to use of the land, if required;
The Company does not have such land for which it needs approval from any authority pertaining to use those.

(vii) If the property is owned by the issuer, whether there is amortgage or other type of charge on the property, 
with nameof the mortgagee;
The company did not give its property to mortgage or other type of charge to any Financial ins�tu�on.

(vii) If the property is taken on lease, the expira�on dates of thelease with name of the lessor, principal terms and 
condi�onsof the lease agreements and details of payment;
No property of TILIL is taken on lease except the following opera�ng lease commitment for Its following 
branches and corporate Office:
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(viii) Date of purchase of plant and machineries along withsellers name, address, years of sale, condi�on when 
purchased, country of origin, useful economic life atpurchase and remaining economic life, purchase price 
and wri�en down value;
The company has no plant and machineries.

(ix) Details of the machineries required to be bought by theissuer, cost of the machineries, name of the suppliers, 
date ofplacement of order and the date or expected date of supply, etc.
The Companyhas no plan to buy machineries.

(x) In case the machineries are yet to be delivered, the date ofquota�ons relied upon for the cost es�mates given 
shall alsobe men�oned;
There are no machineries which are yet to be delivered.

(xi) If plant is purchased in brand new condi�on then it should be men�oned;
TILIL has no plant and hence this informa�on is not applicable here.

(xii) Details of the second hand or recondi�oned machineriesbought or proposed to be bought, if any, including 
the age o�he machineries, balance es�mated useful life, etc. as per PSIcer�ficates of the said machineries as 
submi�ed to theCommission;
TILIL is a life Insurance Company. So it is not applicable for this company.

(xiii) A physical verifica�on report by the issue manager(s)regarding the proper�es as submi�ed to the Commission;

PHYSICAL VERIFICATION REPORT BY ISSUE MANAGERS

Date of Visit: October 04,2021

Corporate Office: Paltan China Town (17th Floor- West Tower) 67/1, Naya Paltan, (VIP Road), Dhaka-1000

We have found the Registered & Head office as details bellow:

Paltan China Town (17th Floor- West Tower) 67/1, Naya Paltan, (VIP Road), Dhaka-1000

Descrip�on of Business:
Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited (TILIL) was incorporated in Bangladesh on February 05, 2014 under the Companies 
Act, 1994 as a public company limited by shares for carrying out all kinds of general insurance ac�vi�es.TILIL was 
granted Cer�ficate of Commencement of Business on February05, 2014 for Life insurance business. The Authorized 
capital of the Company is Tk. 100.00 crore consis�ng of 100,000,000 ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each.
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Since its establishment in 2014 as one of the leading Life insurance companies in the private sector, the Company has 
within a short span of �me established itself as one of the most reputed and trustworthy insurance companies in the 
country.The Company has 46 branches throughout the country.

Descrip�on of Property:
Among others, we have iden�fied the major proper�es of Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited are as follows:

1) Vehicle:
 The company owns a number of vehicles for its employees. A list of vehicles provided as follows:

 Other assets:
Besides, these assets we have also found other assets like furniture and fixture, electrical Equipment,office 
Decora�on and equipment’s, computers, computer so�ware Telephone Installa�on, Computerand other assets 
as men�oned in the fixed assets schedule of the audited financial statements for the year ended December 
31,2021. Around 67 officers and staffs were present during our visit in the registered & head office of the 
Company.
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Signboard
The signboard of the company is well displayed at the registered office and the branch offices.

Sd/-
Md. Riyad Ma�n
Managing Director
BMSL Investment Limited

(xiv) If the issuer is en�tled to any intellectual property right orintangible asset, full descrip�on of the property, 
whether thesame are legally held by the issuer and whether allformali�es in this regard have been complied 
with;
The Company has no intellectual property right or intangible asset.

(xv) Full descrip�on of other proper�es of the issuer;
There is no other property except the schedule of proper�es as men�oned in the fixed asset schedule.
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(b) Any material commitments for capital expenditure andexpected sources of funds for such expenditure;
The Company has not yet made any material commitment for capital expenditure except for those that are 
men�oned under the head ‘Use of Proceeds’ from IPO fund.

(c) Causes for any material changes from period to period inrevenues, cost of goods sold, other opera�ng 
 expensesand net income;

We have used the accoun�ng heads according to our Audited accounts to represent the changes men�oned in 
the above clause.

Causes for changes in Gross premium (%)
Due to changes in marke�ng policy and undertaking of some new visions for improving our business, volume  of 
premium collec�on increasecd subsequently which affected the gross premium during the period?

Causes for changes in Net Premium (%)
As net premium is calculated a�er deduc�ng re-insurance charge from gross premium, due to change in re- 
insurance charge amount, net premium was also veried from period to period.

Causes for changes in Other Income (%)
Due to change in profit rate, profit income was changed during the period.

Causes for changes in Balance of life fund (%)
Due to increase business volume and increase investment income, Balance of life fund was also increased 
period to period.



Prospectus - 62

TRUST ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LTD.



Prospectus - 63

TRUST ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LTD.



Prospectus - 64

TRUST ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LTD.



Prospectus - 65

TRUST ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LTD.

(l) Details of all personnel related schemes for which the company has to make provision for in future years;
Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited considers its human resources as the most valuable assets of the company 
and has been con�nuing to train, equip and groom fresh recruits for building a strong founda�on. In order to 
enhance and advance the professional ability and knowledge of the employees, regular training programs are 
organized at different professional ins�tu�ons. TILIL provides standard monthly salary package to its employee. 
In addi�on to that there is an arrangement of following benefits for its employee:

a) Provident Fund & Gratuity: The Company operates a Contributory Provident Fund for its permanent employees, 
provision for which are being made monthly as rules administered by a Board of Trustee in which eligible 
employees contribute @ 10% of Basic Salary. The company also makes equal contribu�on to the said Provident 
Fund. Gratuity Scheme for the permanent employees is considered.

b) Bonus: In Each Eid Employees are given fes�val Bonus equivalent to one month’s basic salary.

c) Maternity Leave: Female employees are eligible for maternity leave as per Govt. Rules.

d) Cash Incen�ves to the Successful Marke�ng Officers: TILIL holds Annual Business Conference where company 
provides cash incen�ves to the successful Marke�ng Officers in the conference.

(m) Break down of all expenses related to the public issue;
The following amount to be paid to the Issue Managers, Underwriters and other costs are as follows:
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(n) If the issuer has revalued any of its assets, the name,qualifica�on and experiences of the valuer and therea-
son for the revalua�on, showing the value of theassets prior to the revalua�on separately for each 
assetrevalued in a manner which shall facilitate comparisonbetween the historical value and the amount 
a�errevalua�on and giving a summary of the valua�on reportalong with basis of pricing and cer�ficates 
requiredunder the revalua�on guideline of the Commission;

Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited has not made any revalua�on of its asset.

(o) Where the issuer is a holding or subsidiary company, fulldisclosure about the transac�ons, including its 
natureand amount, between the issuer and itssubsidiary or holding company, including transac�onswhich 
had taken place within the last five years of theissuance of the prospectus or since the date ofincorpora�on 
of the issuer, whichever is later, clearlyindica�ng whether the issuer is a debtor or a creditor;

The Company has neither any subsidiary nor it operates under any holding company. Hence, no transac�on has 
taken place.

(p) Financial Informa�on of Group Companies and Companies under common ownership by more than 50%: 
following informa�on for the last three years based on the auditedfinancial statements, in respect of all the 
groupcompanies of the issuer, wherever applicable, along withsignificant notes of auditors:

TILIL has no group companies and companies under common ownership by more than 50%.

(q) Where the issuer is a banking company, insurance company, non-banking financial ins�tu�on or any other 
company which is regulated and licensed by another primary regulator, a declara�on by the board of direc-
tors shall be included in the prospectus sta�ng that all requirements of the relevant laws and regulatory 
requirements of its primary regulator have been adhered to by the issuer;

Declara�on for Insurance Company
We hereby declare that all requirements of the Insurance Act, 2010 as amended and all regulatory require-
ments by IDRA (Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority) have been adhered by the Trust Islami Life 
Insurance Limited
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(r) A report from the auditors regarding any allotment of shares to any person for any considera�on otherwise 
than cash along with rela�onship of that person with the issuer and ra�onale of issue price of the shares;

A REPORT FROM THE AUDITORS REGARDING ANY ALLOTMENT OF SHARES TO ANY PERSON FOR ANY 
CONSIDERATION OTHERWISE THAN CASH ALONG WITH RELATIONSHIP OF THAT PERSON WITH THE ISSUER 
AND RATIONALE OF ISSUE PRICE OF THE SHARES

We cer�fy that the Company has not issued any shares otherwise than for cash and the books of accounts of 
the Company have been verified and found in order.

Financial Statement for the period ended June 30, 2022 has audited by us and  for the year ended December 
31, 2021,December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 were audited by Kazi Zahir Khan & Co. for the year ended 
December 31, 2018 were audited by Mostafa Kamal & Co.  for the year ended December 31, 2017 were audited 
by Ata Karim  & Co. 

(s) Any material informa�on, which is likely to have an impact on the offering or change the terms and condi-
�ons under which the offer has been made to the public
There is no material informa�on, which is likely to have an impact on the offering or change the terms and 
condi�ons under which the offer has been made to the public.

(t) Business strategies and future plans - projected financial statements shall be required only for companies not 
started commercial opera�on yet and authen�cated by Chairman, two Directors, Managing Director, CFO, 
and Company Secretary;

Business Strategies

TILIL’s key strategic objec�ves

The Company’s strategic objec�ve is to improve and consolidate its posi�on in the insurance industry with a 
con�nuous growth philosophy. The major focus of the Company is to enhance value crea�on through delivering 
insurance product to wide range of clients. In order to achieve the objec�ve the Company has been adopted the 
following strategies:

Marke�ng strategy
 • Emphasize service and support.
 • Increase market share.
 • Reinforce a market image as the finest service provider in the industry.
 • Forecast customer needs

Place: Dhaka
Date: 28 ,August 2022

Sd/-
FAMES & R

Chartered Accountants
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4) In case, other income cons�tutes more than 10% of thetotal income, the breakup of the same along with the 
nature of the income, i.e., recurring or non-recurring;

There was no such other income that cons�tutes 10% or more of the total income

5) If a material part of the income is dependent upon asingle customer or a few major customers, disclosureof 
this fact along with relevant data. Similarly, if anyforeign customer cons�tutes a significant por�on o�he 
issuer’s business, disclosure of the fact along withits impact on the business considering exchange ratefluc-
tua�ons;

The Company has no material part of income dependent upon a single customer or a few major customers.

6) In case the issuer has followed any unorthodox procedure for recording sales and revenues, its impact shall be 
analyzed and disclosed.

The issuer has not followed any unorthodox procedure for recording sales and revenues.
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Analysis of reasons for the changes in significant items of income and expenditure:

Causes for changes in Gross premium (%)
Due to changes in marke�ng policy and undertaking of some new visions for improving our business, volume of 
premium collec�on increasecd subsequently which affected the gross premium during the period.

Causes for changes in Net Premium (%)
As net premium is calculated a�er deduc�ng re-insurance charge from gross premium, due to change in re- insurance 
charge amount, net premium was also veried from period to period.

Causes for changes in Other Income (%)
Due to change in profit rate, profit income was changed during the period.

Causes for changes in Balance of life fund (%)
Due to increase business volume, decrease management expense and increase investment income, Balance of life 
fund was also increased period to period.

Causes for changes in Other Expesne (%) 
Due to increase in deprecia�on, amor�za�on, income tax expense and preliemery expenditure, other expesneses 
have increased during the year. 

Causes for changes in Net profit a�ributed to Common Shareholders (%) 
Due to increase in actuarial surplus along with life fund, shareholder por�on of net profit along wih that of policy-
holders has increased substan�lally.
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1) Unusual or infrequent events or transac�ons including unusual trends on account of business ac�vity, unusual 
items of income, change of accoun�ng policies and discre�onary reduc�on of expenses etc.

There have been no transac�ons or events in the past which was considered unusual or infrequent.

2) Significant economic changes that materially affector are likely to affect income from Con�nuing opera�ons;

There are no significant economic changes that materially affect or are likely to affect income from con�nuing 
opera�ons.

3) Known trends or uncertain�es that have had or areexpected to have a material adverse impact on sales,
revenue or income from con�nuing opera�ons;

Other than ma�ers as described in the “Risk Factors” and “Plan of opera�on and discussion of Financial Condi-
�ons” of this prospectus, there are no known trends or uncertain�es that have had or areexpected to have a 
material adverse impact on Premium income of the Companyfrom con�nuing opera�ons

4) Future changes in rela�onship between costs andrevenues, in case of events such as future increase inlabor or 
material costs or prices that will cause amaterial change are known;

Any event such as increase in labor or material costs or prices will not affect the opera�onal result of the 
Company. Therefore, with the passages of �me, number ofpolicies and amount of net premiumsare also 
expected to increase in normal course of opera�on and for introduc�on of new products or services.

5) The extent to which material increases in net sales orrevenue are due to increased sales volume,introduc�on 
of new products or services or increasedsales prices;

Increases in revenues are by and large linked to increases in volume of business ac�vity carried out as a normal 
course of business. There are no such material increases in net sales or revenue are due to increased sales 
volume, introduc�on of new products or services or increased sales prices.

6) Total turnover of each major industry segment inwhich the issuer operated;

Considering the business nature of TILIL, the Company is assumed to operate in insurance industry as life sector. 
The turnover is considered here as premium income as nature of turnover in insurance industry is different 
compared to other industry‟s turnover. According to Bangladesh Insurance Associa�on, the total premium 
income (total turnover) of life insurance companies is
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7) Status of any publicly announced new products orbusiness segment;
The Company did not announce new products or business segment.

8) The extent to which the business is seasonal.
 The business is not a seasonalbusiness.

(w) Defaults or rescheduling of borrowings with financialins�tu�ons or banks, conversion of loans into equity 
alongwith reasons thereof, lock out, strikes and reasons for thesame etc. during the history of opera�on of the 
company;

There is no history of defaults or rescheduling of borrowings with financial ins�tu�ons/banks, conversion of 
loans into equity, lock out, strikes etc.

(x) Details regarding the changes in the ac�vi�es of the issuerduring the last five years which may had a material 
effecton the profits or loss, including discon�nuance of lines o�usiness, loss of agencies or markets and 
similar factors;

There is no change in the ac�vi�es of TILIL during the last five years which may had a material effect on the 
profits/loss, including discon�nuance of lines of business, loss of agencies or markets and similar factors.

(y) Injunc�on or restraining order, if any, with possibleimplica�ons;
There was no injunc�on or restraining order.

(z) Technology, market, managerial competence and capacitybuilt-up;
TILIL will keep pace with the above factors where and when requires.

(aa) Changes in accoun�ng policies in the last three years;
In the last three years, the management of the Company has not change any accoun�ng policies

(bb) Significant developments subsequent to the last financialyear: A statement by the directors whether in their 
opinionthere have arisen any circumstances since the date of thelast financial statements as disclosed in the 
prospectus andwhich materially and adversely affect or is likely to affec�he trading or profitability of the 
issuer, or the value of itsassets, or its ability to pay its liabili�es within the nex�welve months;
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A statement by the directors:
In our opinion, there have no such circumstances arisen since the date of the last financial statements as disclosed 
in the prospectus which materially and adversely affect or is likely to affect the trading or profitability of the Trust 
Islami Life Insurance Limited or the value of its assets, or its ability to pay its liabili�es within the next twelve 
months.

(CC) If any quarter of the financial year of the issuer ends a�er the period ended in the audited financial state-
ments as disclosed in the prospectus,unaudited financial statements for each of the said quarters duly 
authen�cated by the CEO and CFO of the issuer; 

 Audited financial statements for the period ended January 01, 2022 to June 30, 2022 are incorporated in the 
prospectus

(dd) Factors that may affect the results of opera�ons.
 There are no such factors that may affect the results of opera�ons.
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(a) Overview of business and strategies: Overview of business:
Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited (TILIL) was incorporated in Bangladesh on February 05, 2014 under the Compa-
nies Act, 1994 as a public company limited by shares for carrying out all kinds of Life insurance ac�vi�es. TILIL was 
granted Cer�ficate of Commencement of Business on February 05, 2014 for life insurance business. The Author-
ized capital of the Company is Tk. 100 crore consis�ng of 100,000,000 ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each.

Since its establishment in 2014 as one of the prominent life insurance companies in the private sector, the 
Company has within a short span of �me established itself as one of the most reputed and trustworthy insurance 
companies in the country. The Company has 46 branches throughout the country.
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(c) Analysis of the financial statements of last five years with reason(s) of fluctua�ng revenue orsales, other 
income, total income, cost of material, finance cost, deprecia�on and amor�za�on expense, other expense; 
changes of inventories, net profit before and a�er tax, EPS etc.

Causes for changes in Gross premium
Due to changes in marke�ng policy and undertaking of some new visions for improving our business, volume of 
premium collec�on increased subsequently which affected the gross premium during the period.

Causes for changes in Net Premium
As net premium is calculated a�er deduc�ng re-insurance charge from gross premium, due to change in re- 
insurance charge amount, net premium was also varied from period to period.
Causes for changes in Deprecia�on

The company purchased a huge amount of fixed asset which stated on the fixed asset schedule of the audit 
report 5th February, 2014.

Causes for changes in Inventory
Due to change in marke�ng policy and business vision for improving documenta�on, there was some huge 
purchase of stamps and prin�ng sta�onary which caused fluctua�on in inventory percentage.
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Causes for changes in Other Income (%)
Due to change in Profit rate, Profit income was changed during the period.

Causes for changes in Balance of life fund
Due to increase business volume, decrease management expense and increase investment income, Balance of life 
fund was also increased period to period.

Causes for changes in Other Expesne (%)
Due to increase in deprecia�on, amor�za�on, income tax expense and preliemery expenditure, other expesneses 
have increased during the year. 

Causes for changes in Net profit a�ributed to Common Shareholders (%)
Due to increase in actuarial surplus along with life fund, shareholder por�on of net profit along with that of policy-
holders has increased substan�ally, so does EPS.

(a) Known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertain�es that are likely to have an effect on the company’s
business:

There is not any known trend, event or uncertain�es that may affect Company’s business. However, the business may 
have following uncertain�es- natural disaster, and poli�cal unrest, increased compe��on etc.

(b) Trends or expected fluctua�ons in liquidity:
 There are no trends or expected fluctua�ons in liquidity.

(c) Off-balance sheet arrangements those have or likely to have a current or future effect on financial condi�on:
 There are no off-balance sheet arrangements those have or likely to have a current or future effect on
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(d) Statement of if any Directors of the issuer are associated with the securi�es market in any manner and any 
director of the issuer company is also director of any issuer of other listed securi�es during last three years 
with dividend payment history and market performance:

None of the Directors are involved in securi�es market in any manner and not have any directorship in any issuer 
of other listed securi�es during last three years.

(e) Family rela�onship (father, mother, spouse, brother, sister, son, daughter, spouse’s father, spouse’s mother, 
spouse’s brother, spouse’s sister) among the directors and top five officers:

  i.   Family rela�onship among directors
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(g) Short bio-data of each director:

Mohd. Ataur Rahman Bhuiyan, Sponsor & Chairman
Mohd Ataur Rahman Bhuiyan was born in 1964 in an illustrious family of Noakhali. His father is Al-Haj Fazlur Rahman 
Bhuiyan. Mother is Amena Khatun and spouse is Jaynab Begum. His residence address: Flat No. A/4, House No. 06, 
Road No. 137, Gulshan Residen�al Area. Mohd Ataur Rahman Bhuiyan completed his Bachelor of Social Science (BSS) 
under Na�onal University. He has 36 years’ experience of Construc�on & Real Estate business. He awarded by 
government as Commercial Important Person (CIP). Mohd Ataur Rahman Bhuiyan is the Sponsor Director & Chair-
man of Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited.

Md. Zillur Rahman Mridha, Sponsor & Director
Md. Zillur Rahman Mridha was born in 1971 in a dis�nguished family of Munshigonj. His father is Late Khalilur 
Rahman Mridha. Mother is Late Razia Begum and spouse is Mrs. Shahanaj Parveen. His residence address: House # 
2/4, Block-F, Lalma�a, Mohammadpur, Dhaka. He has 29 years’ experience of RMG business. Md Zillur Rahman 
Mridha is the sponsor Director of Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited.He is an MBA.

Md. Jahangir Hossain Molla, Sponsor & Director
Md Jahangir Hossain Molla was born 1970 in an illustrious family of Barishal. His father was Late Md.Abdur Rashid 
Molla. Mother was Late Jahima Khatun and spouse is Saifun Nahar kakuli. His residence address: House No-50/D, 
Road No-03, Block-D, Bashundhara Dhaka. Md Jahangir Hossain Molla Completed his Higher Educa�on. He has 30 
years' experience of overseas business. Md Jahangir Molla is the Sponsor Director of Trust Islami Life Insurance 
Limited.

Ayaz Waris Khan Warsi Sponsor & Director
Ayaz Waris Khan Warisi was born in 1959 in an illustrious family of Nilphamari His father is Shafique Ahmed Khan. 
Mother is Razia Sultana and spouse is Shanaz Parveen. His residence address: Naya Bazar, Sayedpur, Sayedpur, 
Nilphamari. Ayaz Waris Khan Warisi completed his Bachelor Degree. He has 35 years’ experience of Construc�on & 
Real Estate business. Ayaz Waris Khan Warisi is the Sponsor Director of Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited.

Rassad Abedin, Sponsor & Director
Rassad Abedin was born in 1994. His place of Birth is Kuwait City. His Father is Zainal Abedin Zafar, Mother is Showket 
Ara Begum. House : 7B, Gaus Nagar New Eskaton, Ha�rjheel, Shan�nagar-1217, Dhaka. Rassad Abedin completed his 
Master’s in Chichester University (U.K). He has 06 year’s experience of overseas business. Rassad Abedin is Secretary 
General of Rafique Bhuiyan Founda�on since 2014. He is also Al- Jesour Facili�es Management Services Founder 
Managing Director since 2016. Board Member of Al-Islam Technical Educa�on since 2019. Rassad Abedin is the Spon-
sor Director of Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited.



Prospectus - 86

TRUST ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LTD.

Rahad Abedin, Director
Rahad Abedin was born in 2000. His place of Birth is U.A.E. His Father is Zainal Abedin Zafar, Mother is Showket Ara 
Begum. House : 7B, Gaus Nagar New Eskaton, Ha�rjheel, Shan�nagar-1217, Dhaka. Rahad Abedin completed his 
Higher Educa�on in Malaysia. He has 03 year’s experience of overseas business. Rahad Abedin is Founder Director of 
Al-Jesour Facili�es Management Services since 2016. He is also Board Member of IMB Polytechnic Ins�tute since 
2019. Rahad Abedin is Director of Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited.

Md Maniruzzaman Molla, Director
Md Maniruzzaman Molla was born 1979 in an illustrious family of Barishal. His father was Late Md Abdur Rashid 
Molla. Mother was Late Jahima Khatun and spouse is Shammi Akter Nipa. His residence address: House No-50/D, 
Road No-03, Block-D,Bashundhara Dhaka.Md. Maniruzzaman Molla Completed his Masters of Business Administra-
�on (MBA). He has 15 years' experience of overseas business. Md.Maniruzzaman Molla is the Share Holder of Trust 
Islami Life Insurance Limited.

Rafia Nusrat Khan Bro�, Director
Rafia Nusrat Khan Bro� was born in 1999 in an illustrious family of Dhaka. Her father is Anower Husain Khan, Mother 
is Parven Anower. Her residence address: Navana Siraj Lake Aster, Dhanmondi- 06, Hous 32, Road 06, New Market, 
Dhanmondi-6, Dhaka-1205. Kasfia Nusrat Khan Purna completed Civil and Environmental Engineering from Islami 
University of Technology. Rafia Nusrat Khan Bro� is the Director of Trust Islamic Life Insurance Limited.

Kasfia Nusrat Khan Purna, Director
Kasfia Nusrat Khan Purna was born in 2003 in an illustrious family of Dhaka. Her father is Anower Husain Khan, 
Mother is Parven Anower. Her residence address: Navana Siraj Lake Aster, Dhanmondi- 06, House 32, Road 06, New 
Market, Dhanmondi-6, Dhaka-1205. Kasfia Nusrat Khan Purna is in studying higher educa�on. Kasfia Nusrat Khan 
Purna is the Director of Trust Islamic Life Insurance Limited.

Mohammed Ruhul Amin, Independent Director
Mohammed Ruhul Amin,one of the Independent Director of the company. He holds MSS degree. He is the chairman 
of Catharsis Group.

Muhammed Abul Hashem, FCA,FCS, Independent Director
Muhammed Abul Hashem, one of the Independent Director of the company. Heholds FCA, FCS degree

Belayet Hossain, Independent Director
Belayet Hossain,one of the Independent Director of the company. He holds MSS degree
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(h) Loan status of the issuer, its directors and shareholders who hold 10% or more shares in the paid-up capital of 
the issuer in terms of the CIB Report of Bangladesh Bank:

Neither the Company nor any of its Directors or shareholders who hold 10% or more shares in the paid-up 
capital of the issuer is loan defaulter in terms of the CIB report of Bangladesh Bank.

(i) Name, posi�on, educa�onal qualifica�on, age, date of joining in the company, overall experience (in year), 
previous employment, salary paid for the financial year of the Chief Execu�ve Officer, Managing Director, 
Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary, Advisers, Consultants and all Departmental Heads. If the Chair-
man, any director or any shareholder received any monthly salary than this informa�on should also be 
included:

Bangladesh Club
Ltd.

Md. Anwar Hossain
Bhuiyan
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(k) A profile of the sponsors including their names, father’s names, age, personal addresses, educa�onal 
qualifica�ons, and experiences in the business, posi�ons or posts held in the past, directorship held, 
other ventures of each sponsor and present posi�on:
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If the present directors are not the sponsors and control of the issuer was acquired within five years immedi-
ately preceding the date of filing prospectus details regarding the acquisi�on of control, date of acquisi�on, 
terms of acquisi�on, considera�on paid for such acquisi�on etc.
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None of the Directors of the Company acquired controlling shares within five years immediately preceding the 
date of filing Prospectus

(l) If the sponsors or directors do not have experience in the proposed line of business, the fact explaining how 
the proposed ac�vi�es would be carried out or managed:
All the directors have adequate knowledge to carry out this line of business.

(m) Interest of the key management persons:
Interest of the key management persons is given below:

(n) All interests and facili�es enjoyed by a director, whether pecuniary or non-pecuniary:
There were no such interests and facili�esin the formof pecuniary and non-pecuniary enjoyed by the Director-
sexcept following:

Jun

Uddoula Chowdhury

Hossain

Chowdhury Mohammad Farid Uddin
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(a) TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN
This is to cer�fy that the Financial Statements of Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited which was provided to us for 
cer�fica�on and according to the provided audited  financial statements informa�on, this is men�oned that the 
following catagories persons does not hav any tranc�on during the last five years, or any proposed transac�on, 
between the issuer and any of the flowing persons.

(i) Any director or sponsor or execu�ve officer of the issuer;
(ii) Any person holding 5% or more of the outstanding shares of the issuer;
(iii) Any related party or connected person of any of the above persons; Except the transac�ons described in the  
  following table:

Financial Statement for the period ended 30 June, 2022 has  audited by us  and Year ended 31 December 2021, 
December31, 2020, December 31,2019 were  audited by Kazi Zahir Khan & Co. and the year ended 31 Decmber 2018 
audited by Mostafa kamal & Co. for the year ended December 31,2017 were audited by Ata Karim & CO.

P
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(b) Any transac�on or arrangement entered into by the issuer or its subsidiary or associate or en�ty owned or 
significantly influenced by a person who is currently a director or in any way connected with a director of 
either the issuer company or any of its subsidiaries or holding company or associate concerns, or who was a 
director or connected in any way with a director at any �me during the last three years prior to the issuance 
of the prospectus;
There is no transac�on or arrangement entered into by the issuer or its subsidiary or associate or en�ty owned 
or significantly influenced by a person who is currently a director or in any way connected with a director of 
either the issuer company or any of its subsidiaries or holding company or associate concerns, or who was a 
director or connected in any way with a director at any �me during the last three years prior to the issuance of 
the prospectus except the transac�on men�oned in CHAPTER (IX) (a).

(c) Any loans either taken or given from or to any director or any person connected with the director, clearly 
specifying details of such loan in the prospectus, and if any loan has been taken from any such person who did 
not have any stake in the issuer, its holding company or its associate concerns prior to such loan, rate of 
interest applicable, date of loan taken, date of maturity of loan. and present outstanding of such loan.
No loan was taken or given from or to Directors or any person connected with the Directors of Trust Islami Life 
Insurance Limited. Except men�oned in the related party transac�on amoun�ng to tk. 1,40,00,000 which was 
taken from Toma Group.
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(a) The total amount of remunera�on or salary or perquisites paid to the top five salaried officers of the issuer in 
the last accoun�ng year and the name and designa�on of each such officer:

(c) If any shareholder director received any monthly salary or perquisite or benefit it must be men�oned along 
with date of approval in AGM or EGM, terms thereof and payments made during the last accoun�ng year:
No shareholder director of the company received monthly salary/perquisite/benefit.

(d) The board mee�ng a�endance fees received by the director along with date of approval in AGM or EGM:
The board mee�ng a�endance fees received by all the directorswhichwas approved in the Annual General 
Mee�ng (AGM).

(e) Any contract with any director or officer providing for the payment of future compensa�on:
There is no contract between the Company and any of directors or officers regarding any future compensa�on 
to be made to them.

(f) If the issuer intends to substan�ally increase the remunera�on paid to its directors and officers in the current 
year, appropriate informa�on regarding thereto:
The Company has no plan for substan�ally increasing remunera�on to its directors and/or officers except for 
those that are paid as annual increment to their salaries.

(g) Any other benefit or facility provided to the above persons during the last accoun�ng year:
No other benefit or facility provided to the above persons during the last accoun�ng year.

Chowdhury Mohammad Farid
Uddin
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CHAPTER (XII):TRANSACTION WITH THE DIRECTORS AND SUBSCRIBERS TO THE MEMORANDUM

(a) The names of the directors and subscribers to the memorandum, the nature and amount of anything of value 
received or to be received by the issuer from the above persons, or by the said persons, directly or indirectly, 
from the issuer during the last five years along with the descrip�on of assets, services or other considera�on 
received or to be received;

Benefits from the Company during last five years:
The Directors and subscribers to the memorandum of associa�on have not received any benefits excepboard 
mee�ng fees during the last five years.

(b) If any assets were acquired or to be acquired within next two financial years from the aforesaid persons, the 
amount paid for such assets and the method used to determine the price shall be men�oned in the prospec-
tus, and if the assets were acquired by the said persons within five years prior to transfer those to the issuer, 
the acquisi�on cost thereof paid by them.

Directors and Subscribers’ Assets to the Company:
Directors and subscribers to the memorandum have not transferred any asset to the Company. Besides, the 
issuer Company has not received any assets or other considera�ons from its Directors and subscribers to the 
memorandum except fund against allotment of shares.
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a) The names, addresses, BO ID Number of all shareholders of the company before IPO, indica�ng the amount
of securi�es owned and the percentage of the securi�es represented by such ownership:
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b) There shall also be a table showing the name and address, age, experience, BO ID Number, TIN number, numbers
of shares held including percentage, posi�on held in other companies of all the directors before the public issue:
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b) The average cost of acquisi�on of equity shares by the directors cer�fied by the auditors:

Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited allo�ed it’s shares in cash. The average cost of acquisi�on of equity by the directors 
is Tk. 10.00 each. Necessary par�culars of shareholdings, allotment date and considera�on are given below:

Financial Statement for the period ended June 30, 2022 has audited by us and  for the year ended December 31, 
2021,December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 were audited by Kazi Zahir Khan & Co. for the year ended December 31, 
2018 were audited by Mostafa Kamal & Co.  for the year ended December 31, 2017 were audited by Ata Karim  & Co. 

, Independent Director
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d) Detail of shares issued by the company at a price lower than the issue price:
All the shares are issued by the Company at face value of Tk. 10.00 before this issue.

e) History of significant (5% or more) changes in ownership of securi�es from incep�on:
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a) Management disclosure regarding compliance with the requirements of Corporate Governance Guidelines 
of the Bangladesh Securi�es and Exchange Commission (BSEC);

The Company declares that it has complied with the requirements of the applicable regula�ons of Corporate 
Governance Guidelines of Bangladesh Securi�es and Exchange Commission (BSEC) and accordingly cons�-
tutes several commi�ees under the board for good governance. A cer�ficate of compliance from competent 
authority has been incorporated accordingly.

b) A compliance report of Corporate Governance requirements cer�fied by competent authority;

REPORT THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TRUST ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LIMITED ON COMPLIANCE ON THE CORPO-
RATE GOVERNANCE CODE

(a) The Company has complied with the condi�ons of the Corporate Governance Code as s�pulated in the above 
men�oned Corporate Governance Code issued by the Commission.

(b) The Company has complied with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted
by the Ins�tute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) as required by this Code;

(c) Proper books and records have been kept by the company as required under the Companies Act, 1994, the securi�es
laws and other relevant laws; and

(d) The governance of the company is sa�sfactory.
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Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited

Status of Compliance with the Corporate Governance Guideline (CGC)

Status of compliance with the condi�ons imposed by the Commission’s No�fica�on No. SEC/CMRRCD/2006- 
158/207/Admin/80 dated 31December 2021 issued under sec�on 2CC of the Securi�es and Exchange Ordinance, 
1969:
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c) Details rela�ng to the issuer's audit commi�ee and remunera�on commi�ee, including the names of commi�ee
members and a summary of the terms of reference under which the commi�ees operate.

In accordance with the currently accepted Best Prac�ce and Corporate Governance Guidelines adopted by Bangladesh 
Securi�es and Exchange Commission (BSEC), the Board appointed Audit Commi�ee and remunera�on commi�ee 
comprises of the following:

Audit Commi�ee Members Name
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6. The valua�on disclosed a Surplus which has been decided not to distribute. If there was adequate surplus then 
the basis of distribu�on of surplus between the insurer and the policyholders would have been determined by 
the Company as per the Insurance Act 1938 and the recommenda�on of the actuary.

7. No surplus distribu�on has been made in this valua�on. The distribu�on of surplus among the policyholders is 
usually made by the use of reversionary bonus method as follows:

• The distribu�on of surplus is made by the Company as per recommenda�ons of the actuary

• The bonus is allocated on the basis of the premium payment term

• The bonus is allo�ed in respect of each year’s premium paid.

8. There is no alloca�on of reversionary bonuses in this valua�on. The valua�on disclosed a surplus of 73,20 
thousands. This surplus has been carried forward in full.

9. Policy documents issued to the policyholders do not contain any minimum guaranteed surrender values and as 
such ‘J’ form has not been prepared.

10. Provision for disability benefit was provided under supplementary rider.

11. Forms H and I are a�ached.

12. Valua�on was carried out on a computer under my supervision.
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FORM – G The relevant part of Revenue Account of Trust Islami Life Insurance 
Limited for the half yearly ending 30th is given below:
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Cer�fica�on Under Regula�on 4, Part I of the Fourth Schedule of the Repealed Insurance Act, 1.938 read 
with Sec�on 160 of the Insurance Act, 2010

I hereby cer�fy that I have sa�sfied myself as to the accuracy of the valua�on data, and of the valua�on of Trust Islami 
Life Insurance Limited as at 30th June 2022 made for the purpose of the abstract prepared in accordance with the 
requirements of part II of the Fourth Schedule of the Repealed Insurance Act 1938 read with Sec�on 160 of the Insurance 
Act, 2010. The data was supplied by the IT department. I have checked reasonability of the data and held discussions 
with IT manager and the senior management to reasonably ensure accuracy of the data supplied to me.
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CHAPTER (XIX): LITIGATIONS, FINE OR PENALTY

(a) The following li�ga�ons including outstanding li�ga�ons against the issuer or any of its directors and fine or 
penalty imposed by any authority:

The issuer or any of its directors was not involved in any of the following type of legal proceedings men�oned below;

(i) Li�ga�on involving Civil Laws

(ii) Li�ga�on involving Criminal Laws

(iii) Li�ga�on involving Securi�es, Finance and Economic Laws

(iv) Li�ga�on involving Labor Laws

(v) Li�ga�on involving Taxa�on (Income tax, VAT, Customs Duty and any other taxes or du�es)
(vi) Li�ga�on involving any other Laws

(b) Cases including outstanding li�ga�ons filed by the Company or any of its directors:
There is no caseincluding outstanding casesfiled by the issuer or any of its directors to any of the following types of 
legal proceedings men�oned below;

(i) Li�ga�on involving Civil Laws: No cases filed by the company or any of its directors.

(ii) Li�ga�on involving Criminal Laws: No cases filed by the company or any of its directors.

(iii) Li�ga�on involving Securi�es, Finance and Economic Laws: No cases filed by the company or any of its directors.

(iv) Li�ga�on involving Labor Laws: No cases filed by the company or any of its directors.

(v) Li�ga�on involving Taxa�on (Income tax, VAT, Customs Duty and any other taxes or du�es):No cases filed by 
the company or any of its directors.

(vi) Li�ga�on involving any other Laws: No cases filed by the company or any of its directors.
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CHAPTER (XX): RISK FACTORS AND MANAGEMENT’S PERCEPTIONS ABOUT THE RISKS

(i) Internal risk factors may include, among others:

a) Credit Risk: This is the risk of default on a debt that may arise because of default by the borrower to pay the loan. 
In opera�ng any business there is always credit risk lies in the business. As there is always lending and borrowing 
between par�es in the form of money and goods.

Management Percep�on: Credit Risk mainly lies with Financial Ins�tu�ons and the manufacturing company 
which sells its products in credit. Since Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited (TILIL) is involved in insurance business, 
there is no such credit risk.

b) Liquidity Risk: The risk that a company may be unable to meet short term financial demands. This usually occurs
due to the inability to convert its current assets to cash without a loss of capital or income. Liquidity is a common 
phenomenon of the business.

Management Percep�on: TILIL conducts liquidity management in a manner that maintains stability and flexibility 
in day-today funding ac�vi�es. The Company manages its working capital in efficient way to maintain required 
liquidity. We are also controlling regular payment of cheques, cash inflow and ou�low, maturity of deposits and 
our accessto other funding sources as and when required.

c) Risk associated with the issuer’s interest in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates: If the subsidiaries make
loss, it affects parent company’s balance sheet. In case of associate, there is chance of decline value of investment 
in associate company. As for joint venture, a joint venture (JV) is a business arrangement in which two or more 
par�es agree to pool their resources for the purpose of accomplishing a specific task. This task can be a new 
project or any 156 other business ac�vity. In a joint venture (JV), each of the par�cipants is responsible for 
profits, losses and costs associated with it.

Management Percep�on: Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited (TILIL) has no subsidiary, associate and joint 
venture.

d) Significant revenue generated from limited number of customers, losing any one or more of which would have 
a material adverse effect on the issuer: There is risk involved in having limited number of customer and losing 
of that par�cular customer has nega�ve impact on company’s sales and cash flow as well.

Management Percep�on: The Company is not dependent on any par�cular or limited number of customers to 
operate our business and our management is always keen to find out new customers which boost up the sales. 
We maintain a good rela�onship with our customers and take feedback about our services. There is less chance 
to lose customers and losing any one will not affect company’s profitability for its demand, high quality and 
compe��veservice.

e) Dependency on a single or few suppliers of raw materials, failure of which may affect produc�on adversely:
There is also risk involved in having limited number of suppliers as well. Single or few suppliers may exploit the 
company by price hike, un�mely delivery and low quality of product.

Management Percep�on: By the nature of business Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited has not this type of risk.

f) More than 20% revenue of the issuer comes from sister concern or associate or subsidiary: Having 20% 
revenue genera�on from sister concern or associate or subsidiary makes issuer dependent on others companies. 
Hence, there is dependency risk.

Management Percep�on: We do not have any sister concerns and associate or subsidiary.



Prospectus - 145

TRUST ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LTD.

g) Nega�ve earnings, nega�ve cash flows from opera�ng ac�vi�es, declining turnover or profitability, during last 
five years, if any: Nega�ve earning and nega�ve opera�ng cash flow is risk the going concern risk for the en�ty.

Management Percep�on: We have been opera�ng our business efficiently. We do not have any nega�ve 
earning and nega�ve cash flow from opera�on .

Loss making associate/subsidiary/group companies of the issuer: When associate/subsidiary/group companies 
of the issuer are loss making, it affects the issuer and there is nega�ve impact on cash flow of issuer and Balance 
Sheet as well.

Management Percep�on: We do not have any associate, subsidiary or group of companies.

h) Financial weakness and poor performance of the issuer or any of its subsidiary or associates: Financial weakness
and poor performance of the issuer have nega�ve impact on the company. As a result, it will be tough to pay 
loan interest, debt service and dividend. Future growth will be hampered.

Management Percep�on: The Company is financially sound and has been opera�ng with good performance. 
Besides, as the Company has no associate/subsidiary/associate company, the risk of loss arising from these 
types of concern due to their financial weakness and poor performance is not related to TILIL as such.

i) Decline in value of any investment: If investment value decline, it will reduce the profit and assets as well.

Management Percep�on: TILIL has investment in bonds which is almost

j) Risk associated with useful economic life of plant and machinery, if purchased in second hand or recondi�oned:
There is obsolescence risk rela�ng to plant and machinery. If the machinery is purchased in second hand or 
recondi�oned, there high risk of repair and maintenance which has impact on profitability of the company.

Management Percep�on:By the nature of business TILIL has no plant and machineries, therefore this type of 
risk will not arise.

k) Adverse effect on future cash flow if interest free loan given to related party or such loans taken from directors
may recall: It is loan given and taken from related party and directors as well. If company gives such loan without 
interest to related party, there is interest burden for the company if the money was taken as loan. On the other 
hand, if such loans are taken from directors, it will have an impact on the cash flow to pay off the loan to the 
Directors.

Management Percep�on:There is no as such loan given to related party or loan taken from directors, except 
Loan from other company amoun�ng to taka 14,000,000 which is men�oned in the related party transac�on 
without any interest.

l) Poten�al conflict of interest, if the sponsors or directors of the issuer are involved with one or more ventures 
which are in the same line of ac�vity or business as that of the issuer and if any supplier of raw materials or 
major customer is related to the same sponsors or directors: In these cases, there is high chance of compromise 
among the related companies because of conflict of Interest.

 
Management Percep�on: There is no poten�al conflict of Interest as we do not have any venture which is in the 
same line of ac�vity.

m) Related party transac�ons entered into by the company those may adversely affect compe��ve edge: Related 
party transac�on of the issuer creates conflict of interest which reduces the compe��ve advantage of the issuer.
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Management Percep�on: There is no as such transac�on which may adversely affect compe��ve edge.

n) Any restric�ve covenants in any shareholders' agreement, sponsors' agreement or any agreement for debt or 
preference shares or any restric�ve covenants of banks in respect of the loan/ credit limit and other banking 
facili�es: All informa�on must be known to the poten�al investor so that investor’s interest may not be hampered 
in future. So, any restric�ve covenants, if it goes against poten�al investors, will make investors in jeopardy.

Management Percep�on: There are no restric�ve covenants in any shareholders’ agreement, sponsors’ agreement 
or any agreement rela�ng to debt or preference shares or any restric�ve covenants of Banks in respect of loan or 
credit limit and other banking facili�es.

o) Business opera�ons may be adversely affected by strikes, work stoppages or increase in wage demands by 
employees: In such case, company’s business opera�on will be hampered.

Management Percep�on: We are used to with the poli�cal unrest for long �me and our business industries are 
used to dealing with this phenomenon. Moreover, by nature of business we have no worker than officials and 
we offer a compe��ve salary structure for our employee for their job sa�sfac�on.

p) Seasonality of the business of the issuer: It is the risk involving that company is not doing business round the year.

Management Percep�on: By nature of business TILIL has no seasonal aspect.

q) Expiry of any revenue genera�ng contract that may adversely affect the business: This is the risk of losing 
customers affec�ng future sales.

Management Percep�on: The Company does not have any revenue genera�ng contract that may adversely 
affect the business.

r) Excessive dependence on debt financing which may adversely affect the cash flow: Excessive dependence on 
debt causes huge interest burden of the company and high risk of insolvency that may result in bankruptcy.

Management Percep�on: TILIL has no debt financing from the year 2014, therefore there is no possibility of risk 
in this respect.

s) Excessive dependence on any key management personnel absence of whom may have adverse effect on the 
issuer’s business performance: Excessive dependence on key management affects the business if the manage-
ment is changed in future, which will create vacuum. Besides, if the key management personnel are of bad inten-
�on, excessive dependence will also affect the business.

Management Percep�on: Corporate Governance is well prac�ced in our company. The Company also has well 
placed organogram in our company. Hence, any change in the key management can be replaced with other 
persons.

t) Enforcement of con�ngent liabili�es which may adversely affect financial condi�on: It is the future
 
burden of liabili�es that the investors will take on their shoulders. Con�ngent liabili�es reduced the assets or 
create obliga�on to pay the liabili�es.

Management Percep�on: We do not have any con�ngent liabili�es which may adversely affect financial condi�on.

u) Insurance coverage not adequately protect against certain risks of damages: Insurance ensures and protects to 
deal with uncertainty of future material loss/damage. So, insurance coverage is important for the business.
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Management Percep�on: TILIL maintas to re-insurance to meet up claims.Again, there are no such assets which 
insuranace coverage required.

v) Absence of assurance that directors will con�nue its engagement with Company a�er expiry of lock in period: 
Directors run the company with the accumulated finance from public and other financing source. If directors 
discon�nue running the business, there will be nega�ve impact on business and share price as well.

Management Percep�on: Our directors are involved in the business for long �me and they will con�nue the 
business a�er expiry of lock in period.

w) Ability to pay any dividends in future will depend upon future earnings, financial condi�on, cash flows, working 
capital requirements and capital expenditure: Dividend payment is highly dependent on company’s ability to 
generate profit. If company cannot earn good amount of profit from opera�on, it is unlikely to pay dividend.

Management Percep�on: We are a financially sound company.We are in belief that we will be able to pay 
dividend regularly from our earning in the years to come considering financial condi�on, cash flows, working 
capital requirements, capital expenditure as well as government’s ini�a�ves taken for the development of this 
sector at present.

x) History of non-opera�on, if any and short opera�onal history of the issuer and lack of adequate background 
and experience of the sponsors: If there is any non-opera�on of the company, it creates nega�ve impression. 
Apart from this, short opera�on history indicates company is gathering knowledge and exper�se to be compe�-
�ve in the market.

Management Percep�on: Such case did not happen in the history of our company.

y) Risks related to engagement in new type of business, if any: If it is new business, there is risk of viability of the 
new business.

Management Percep�on: There is no as such risk as we are not engaged in any new type of business.

z) Risk in inves�ng the securi�es being offered with comparison to other available investment op�ons: If the issue 
price goes down a�er floa�ng, there is investment risk for the poten�al investors.

Management Percep�on: Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited (TILIL) is a profitable en�ty and business growth will 
con�nue in the long run. It is not risky in inves�ng securi�es in comparison with other available investment 
op�on.

aa) Any penalty or ac�on taken by any regulatory authori�es for non-compliance with provisions of any law: 
It creates a nega�ve impression on the issuer.

Management Percep�on: There are no as such issues arisen in the history of our company.

bb) Li�ga�ons against the issuer for Tax and VAT related ma�ers and other government claims, along with the 
disclosures of amount, period for which such demands or claims are outstanding, financial implica�ons and 
the status of the case:It creates a nega�ve impression on the issuer.

Management Percep�on: No, we did not have any li�ga�on rela�ng to Tax, VAT or other government claims 
against of our Company.

cc) Registered office or factory building or place of opera�on is not owned by the issuer: Factory building 
should be owned by the company. Otherwise, there is risk of hike in factory rent in the years to come and threat 
of shi�ing the factory as well.



Prospectus - 148

TRUST ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LTD.

Management Percep�on: Registered office and the branch offices of TILIL are rented for long term agreement. 
Therefore, no risk will be arisen in thisrespect.

dd) Lack of renewal of exis�ng regulatory permissions/ licenses: In this case company is not following the law to 
renew its all licenses.

Management Percep�on: There is no such issue rela�ng to lack of exis�ng regulatory permissions/ licenses.

ee) Failure in holding AGM or declaring dividend or payment of interest by any listed securi�es of the issuer or any 
of its subsidiaries or associates: Failure in holding AGM or declaring dividend indicates the lack of compliance 
to the regulatory rules. Failure of payment of interest indicate the poor cash genera�on to the company to pay 
interest and debt service. The overall impression will be nega�ve for the company.

Management Percep�on: The Company does not have any subsidiary or associate orlisted securi�es and thus 
no such risk arisen.

ff) Issuances of securi�es at lower than the IPO offer price within one year: The management ul�mate goal is to 
maximize the wealth of the company. If share price goes up, it maximizes wealth of the company. On the other 
hand, if share price goes down, it minimizes the wealth of the company.

Management Percep�on: Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited (TILIL) has been profitable en�ty. It has poten�ality 
to grow in future. We believe that our IPO offer price will not be lower within one year.

gg) Refusal of applica�on for public issue of any securi�es of the issuer or any of its subsidiaries or associates at 
any �me by the Commission: If any refusal happened in the above cases, it will create nega�ve impression to 
the issuer.

Management Percep�on: Such cases did not happen for our company.

(ii) External risk factors may include among others:

a) Interest Rate Risks: Interest rate risk is associated with the fluctua�ons in market interest rates which cause a 
company’s cost of debt to increase. Changes in the Government’s monetary policy also tend to increase the 
interest rates. High rate of interest may adversely affect the opera�ng results and financial performance of the 
Company with addi�onal financial charges and squeezes the profit of the company

Management Percep�on: TILIL currently doesn’t enjoy any loan facility, therefore there is no interest rate risk 
associated with the Company

b) Exchange Rate Risks: Unfavorable vola�lity orfluctua�ons of foreign currency to BDT exchange rate may have an 
impact on the cost structure and profitability of thecompany.

Management Percep�on: By the nature of business TILIL has no opportunity to happen this because of it 
operatesin local market and deals with local currency only.

c) Industry Risks: Company’s sales and revenues are depended on the aggregate demand of its services. Any economic
recession, changes in requirements, na�onal income and other related factors may cause to decline the market 
demand of The Company services.

Management Percep�on: Strong brand loyalty of the company’s services to its customers has enabled the 
Company to capture significant market share in the sector. The Company is con�nuously penetra�ng into the 
market and upgrading the quality of the products to minimize the market risks.
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d) Economic and Poli�cal risks:
Economic risks: The growth of The Company could be adversely affected by various factors such as poli�cal or 
regulatory ac�on, including adverse changes in liberaliza�on policies, social disturbances, terrorist a�acks and 
other acts of violence or war, natural calami�es, commodity and energy prices and various other factors. Any 
significant changes may adversely affect our business and financials.

Management Percep�on: Bangladesh economy is booming for last few years. Consistent industrial growth along 
with increased agricultural produc�on has made the per capita income higher than that of recent years. In 
addi�on, favorable government policies and industry friendly policies by other regulatory bodies have proved to 
be congenial to the economy of the country. The management of The Company is aware of such risks.

Poli�cal risks: Bangladesh is prone to serious unrest in the poli�cal condi�on which produces hartal, roadblock 
and many other barriers to the business. This could also push the cost of the product upwards.

Management Percep�on: During the last forty years of post-independence period, Bangladesh has gone 
through a variety of poli�cal situa�ons. But recently, a stable poli�cal atmosphere is prevailing in the country. 
Both the ruling and opposi�on par�es are commi�ed to the be�erment of the country. Poli�cal par�es are 
thinking for growth of the country.

e) Market and Technology-related Risks;
Market risks; TILIL is opera�ng in a free market economy regime. The company might have to face s�ff compe�-
�on from its compe�tors.

Management percep�on: Last few years TILIL doing its businesssoundly and earned a good fame in the insur-
ance sector. Management of TILILbelieves that they can manage the market risk in future.

Technology-related risks; Technology always plays a vital role for each and every type of business. Innova�on of 
new and cost-effec�ve technology can increase u�lity and reduce costs of service. On the other hand, obsolete 
technology may have a nega�ve impact on the business.

Management percep�on: TILIL applies the latest technology in the insurance management process. f) Poten�al 
or exis�ng government regula�ons; The Company operates under Companies Act, Insurance Development 
Regulatory

f) Poten�al or exis�ng government regula�ons: The Company operates under Companies Act, Insurance 
Development Regulatory Authority (IDRS), Taxa�on policy adopted by NBR, Bangladesh Securi�es and Exchange 
Commission (BSEC)’s Rules and Rules adopted by other regulatory bodies. Any abrupt changes of the policies 
formed by those bodies will impact the business of The Company adversely.

Management percep�on: Economy of Bangladesh has been developing over the decades because of business-
friendly Rules and Regula�ons adopted by the various regulatory bodies of the country. Unless any adverse 
policies are taken, which may materially affect the industry as a whole, the business of The Company will not be 
affected.

Government emphasizes on the growth of local industry to meet the local need. Yet the promoters and the 
sponsors have endeavor to convince the policy makers for adop�ng favorable terms and condi�ons, which will 
eventually help the industry to compete with the low-cost loca�ons in the global arena and to save foreign 
currency.

g) Poten�al or exis�ng changes in global or na�onal policies: Changes in the exis�ng global or na�onal policies 
can have either posi�ve or nega�ve impacts for the company. Any scarcity or price hike or global or na�onal 
policy change may hamper the profitability.
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Management percep�on: Poli�cal turmoil and the disturbance are bad for the economy and so for the 
company. The Company can prosper in situa�on of poli�calstability and a congenial business environment. The 
management of TILIL is always concerned about the prevailing and upcoming future changes in the global or 
na�onal policy and shall response appropriately and �mely to safeguard its interest.

h) Statutory clearances and approvals those are yet to be received by the issuer: Statutory clearance and approval
is impera�ve for any business to start off. There are many statutory clearances and approvals need from the 
regulatory authority in order to be monitored, controlled and guided.

Management Percep�on: We have been in the business over 7 years. We have collected all the statutory clear-
ance to operate our business. Hence, there is no as such risk for our Company.

i) Compe��ve condi�on of the business: TILIL is opera�ng in a free market economy regime. The Company might
have to face hard compe��on from its compe�tors. Availability of different types of insurance service adds to 
the compe��on, challenging the profitability of the business.

Management Percep�on: Bangladesh is the prime source of cheapest labor in the world, gaining compara�ve 
advantages for its industries over their global compe�tors. Other overhead costs are also low in Bangladesh. As 
a result, The Company has been able to maintain its cost of service most compe��ve. Moreover, over the last 
few years the Company has built a trustworthy rela�onship with its customers and we expect in future it will 
help the Company to almost avoid or to lower the compe��on with others.

j) Complementary and supplementary products/services which may have an impact on business of the issuer: 
Complementary goods are paired goods. Two goods (A and B) are complementary when using more of goods A 
requires the use of more of goods B. For example, the demand for one goods (printers) generates demand for 
the other (ink cartridges). Supplementary goods are two goods that are used together. For example, if we have 
a car, we also need petrol to run the car. Supplementary goods have a nega�ve cross elas�city of demand. For 
instance, when price of petrol goes up, demand for petrol and cars goes down.

Management Percep�on:The Company has not faced any challenges rela�ng to supplementary and comple-
mentary products and Management are concerned with the issue. In future, if necessary, management may 
diversify the product to be compe��ve over the compe�tors.
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CHAPTER (XXI): DESCRIPTION OF THE ISSUE

(a) Issue Size: Tk. 160,000,000.00

(b) Number of securi�es to be issued;
The Company will offer 16,000,000 Ordinary Shares, of these 16,000,000 ordinary shares 15%(i.e 2,400,000 
ordinary shares) are reserved for private offer (for employees and others) and   rest of the shares 20% (i.e. 
2,720,000 Ordinary Shares) are reserved for Eligible Investor (EI) excluding mutual funds and CIS and 5% (i.e. 
680,000 Ordinary Shares) are reserved for Mutual Funds and CIS and 70% (i.e. 9,520,000 Ordinary Shares) to 
General Public (GP) and remaining 5% (i.e. 680,000 Ordinary Shares) are reserved for NRB:

(c) Authorized capital and paid-up capital;
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(g) Objec�ve of the issue including financing requirements and feasibility in respect of 
enhanced paid-up capital.

The Proceeds from IPO through issuance of 16,000,000 nos. of ordinary shares at an 
issue price of Tk. 10.00 each at par totaling Tk. 160,000,000 will be used as projected 
below:

Feasibility:
As Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited (TILIL) is not planning to expand its business or 
acquire any assets from IPO proceeds hence, feasibility study is not required.

Financial Statement for the period ended June 30, 2022 has been audited by us and  
for the year ended December 31, 2021,December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 were 
audited by Kazi Zahir Khan & Co. for the year ended December 31, 2018 were audited 
by Mostafa Kamal & Co.  for the year ended December 31, 2017 were audited by Ata 
Karim  & Co. 
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CHAPTER (XXII): USE OF PROCEEDS

(a) Use of net proceeds of the offer indica�ng the amount to be used for each purpose with head-wise break-up;

The Proceeds from IPO through issuance of 16,000,000 nos. of ordinary shares at an issue price of Tk. 10.00 each 
at par totaling Tk. 160,000,000 will be used as projected below:

Use of Proceeds under:
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(b) U�liza�on of the total amount of paid-up capital and share premium, if any, including the sponsors’ contribu�on
and capital raised of the issuer at the �me of submission of prospectus, in details with indica�on of use of 
such funds in the financial statements;

The u�liza�on of the paid up capital of the company are as follows:

(c) If one of the objects is an investment in a joint venture, asubsidiary, an associate or any acquisi�on, details of 
theform of investment, nature of benefit expected to accrue tothe issuer as a result of the investment, brief 
descrip�on o�usiness and financials of such venture;

The Company has no objects to investment in such type of ventures by using Use of IPO proceeds.

(d) If IPO proceeds are not sufficient to complete the project,then source of addi�onal fund must be men�oned. 
In thisconnec�on, copies of contract to meet the addi�onal fundsare required to be submi�ed to the Commission. 
The meansand source of financing, including details of bridge loan orother financial arrangement, which may 
be repaid from theproceeds of the issue along with u�liza�on of such funds;

 Not applicable in this case.

(e) A schedule men�oning the stages of implementa�on andu�liza�on of funds received through public offer in 
a tabularform, progress made so far, giving details of landacquisi�on, civil works, installa�on of plant and 
machinery,the approximate date of comple�on of the project and theprojected date of full commercial opera�on 
etc. Theschedule shall be signed by the Chief Execu�ve Officer orManaging Director, Chief Financial Officer 
and Chairmanon behalf of Board of Directors of the issuer;
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(f) If there are contracts covering any of the ac�vi�es of theissuer for which the proceeds of sale of securi�es are 
to beused, such as contracts for the purchase of land or contractsfor the construc�on of buildings, the issuer 
shall disclose theterms of such contracts, and copies of the contracts shall beenclosed as annexure to the 
prospectus; The Company has not made any type of such contact.

(g) If one of the objects of the issue is u�liza�on of the issueproceeds for working capital, basis of es�ma�on of 
workingcapital requirement along with the relevant assump�ons,reasons for raising addi�onal working 
capital substan�a�ngthe same with relevant facts and figures and also the reasonsfor financing short with 
long term investments and an item-wise break-up of last three years working capital and nex�wo years 
projec�on;

No objects of the issue are u�liza�on of the issue proceeds for working capital.
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(h) Where the issuer proposes to undertake one or moreac�vi�es like diversifica�on, moderniza�on, expansion, 
etc.,the total project cost ac�vity-wise or project-wise, as the casemay be;

The Company does not propose to undertake one or more ac�vi�es like diversifica�on,moderniza�on, expansion, 
etc.

(i) Where the issuer is implemen�ng the project in a phasedmanner, the cost of each phase, including the phases,

if any,which have already been implemented;

Described under the �tle Use of Proceeds and Implementa�on Schedule in the prospectus

(j) The details of all exis�ng or an�cipated material transac�onsin rela�on to u�liza�on of the issue proceeds or 
project costwith sponsors, directors, key management personnel,associates and group companies;

There is no exis�ng or an�cipated material transac�on in rela�on to u�liza�on of the issue proceeds or 
project cost with sponsors, directors, key management personnel, associates and group companies.

(k) Summary of the project appraisal or feasibility report by the relevant professionals not connected with the 
issuer, issue manager and registrar to the issue with cost of the project and means of finance, weaknesses and 
threats, if any, as given in the appraisal or feasibility report.

Not applicable here.
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CHAPTER (XXIII): LOCK-IN

(a) Ordinary shares of the issuer shall be subject to lock-in, from the date of issuance of prospectus or commercial 
opera�on, whichever comes later, in the following manner:

(1) All shares held, at the �me of according consent to the public offer, by sponsors, directors and shareholders 
holding ten percent (10%) or more shares, other than alterna�ve investment funds, for 03(three) years.

(2) In case any exis�ng sponsor or director of the issuer transfers any share to any person, other than exis�ng 
shareholders, all shares held by those transferee shareholders, at the �me of according consent to the public 
offer, for 03 (three) years.

(3) If the shares are distributed through the fresh allotment before 4 (four) years or moreshall be subject to 
lock-in for 1 (one) year.

(4) All shares held by alterna�ve investment funds, at the �me of according consent to the public offer, for 01 
(one) year.

(5) All shares held, at the �me of according consent to the public offer, by any person other than the persons 
men�oned in sub-rules (1), (2) and (3) above, for 01 (one) year.

(b) The following table indicates the Lock-In status of the shareholders of Trust Islami Life Insurance Ltd.

Sl. Name of Shareholder Position No. of Share (%) BO ID Date of 1st 

acquisition
Lock- 

in 
period 

* 
1 Mohd. Ataur Rahman 

Bhuiyan 
Sponsor & 
Chairman 

2,400,000 10% 1604940075246406
 

5-Febl-14 
15-Dec-21 

3 Yrs. 

2 Iqbal Haider Chowdhury Sponsor 
Shareholder 

2,400,000 10% 1604940075247668
 

5-Febl-14 
15-Dec-21 

3 Yrs. 

3 Md. Zillur Rahman Mridha Sponsor & 
Director 

2,400,000 10% 1604940075246762
 

5-Febl-14 
15-Dec-21 

3 Yrs. 

4 Md. Jahangir Hossain 
Molla 

Sponsor & 
Director 

2,400,000 10% 1604940075246896
 

5-Febl-14 
15-Dec-21 

3 Yrs. 

5 Ayaz Waris Khan Warisi Sponsor & 
Director 

2,400,000 10% 1605170072934624 5-Febl-14 
15-Dec-21 

3 Yrs. 

6 Md. Abdul Wadud Sponsor 
Shareholder 

1,000,000 4.17% 1203220005748441 5-Febl-14 3 Yrs. 

7 Rafia Nusrat Khan Bro� Director 1,014,332 4.22% 1604940075247379 25-Jan-22 3 Yrs. 
8 Rassad Abedin Sponsor & 

Director 
1,555,999 6.48% 1604940075246671 5-Febl-14 

15-Dec-21 
3 Yrs. 

9 Md Maniruzzaman Molla Director 2,400,000 10% 1604940075247146 10-Oct-21 
15-Dec-21 

3 Yrs. 

10 Rahad Abedin Director 1,555,999 4.22% 1604940075246599 10-Oct-21 
15-Dec-21 

3 Yrs. 

11 Kasfia Nusrat Khan Purna Director 1,014,332 4.22% 1604940075247501 25-Jan-22 3 Yrs. 
12 Farhana Akhter Shareholder 812,000 3.38% 1604940075247419 23-Aug-17 3 Yrs. 
13 Rubina Parvin Shareholder 35,334 0.14% 1604940075247569 15-Dec-21 3 Yrs. 
14 Shammi Akhter Shareholder 35,334 0.14% 1604940075246995 15-Dec-21 3 Yrs. 
15 Shanaz Parveen Shareholder 35,334 0.14% 1605170075252796 15-Dec-21 3 Yrs. 
16 Mukitur Rahman Shareholder 35,334 0.14% 1604940075246491 15-Dec-21 3 Yrs. 
17 Abdullah Al-Mamun Shareholder 875,334 3.65% 1203110075405038 15-Dec-21

7-Mar-22 
3 Yrs. 

18 Saifun Nahar Kakuly Shareholder 70,668 0.29% 1604940075247311 15-Dec-21 3 Yrs. 
19 Laila Arjuman Banu Shareholder 300,000 1.25% 1202830043279638 7-Mar-22 3 Yrs. 
20 Abdullah Al-fahad Shareholder 840,000 3.50% 1202090075241165 7-Mar-22 3 Yrs. 
21 Rehana Atjuman Hye Shareholder 420,000 1.75% 1604940075256165 7-Mar-22 3 Yrs. 

 Total  24,000,000 100%    

 

[From the issue date of Trading] 
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CHAPTER (XXV): DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES OUTSTANDING OR BEING OFFERED

(a) Dividend, vo�ng and preemp�on rights;
The Share Capital of the company is divided into Ordinary Shares, carrying equal rights to vote and receive 
dividend in terms of the relevant provisions of the Companies Act 1994 and the Ar�cles of Associa�on of the 
company. All Shareholders shall have the usual vo�ng rights in person or by proxy in connec�on with, among 
others, elec�on of Directors & Auditors and other usual agenda of General Mee�ng – Ordinary or Extra-ordinary. 
On a show of hand, every shareholder presents in person and every duly authorized representa�ve of a share-
holder present at a General Mee�ng shall have one vote and on a poll every shareholder present or by proxy 
shall have one vote for every share held by him or her.

In case of any addi�onal issue of shares for raising further capital the exis�ng shareholders shall be en�tled to 
Right Issue of shares in terms of the guidelines issued by the BSEC from �me to �me.

(b) Conversion and liquida�on rights;
In terms of provisions of the Companies Act 1994, Ar�cles of Associa�on of the Company and other relevant 
rules in force, the shares of the Company are freely transferable. The Company shall not charge any fee for 
registering transfer of shares. No transfer shall be made to a firm, an infant or person of unsound mind.

(c) Dividend policy;
 i. The profit of the Company, subject to any special right rela�ng thereto created or authorized to be created by 

the Memorandum and subject to the provisions of the Ar�cles of Associa�on, shall be divisible among the 
members in propor�on to the amount of capital paid-up on the shares held by them respec�vely.

 ii. No large dividend shall be declared than is recommended by the Directors, but the Company in its General 
Mee�ng may declare a smaller dividend. The declara�on of Directors as to the amount of Net profit of the 
Company shall be conclusive.

 iii. No dividend shall be payable except out of the profits of the Company or any other undistributed profits. 
Dividend shall not carry interest as against the Company.

 iv. The Directors may from �me to �me pay the members such interim dividend as in their judgment the finan-
cial posi�on of the Company may jus�fy.

 v. A transfer of shares shall not pass the right to any dividend declared thereon before the registra�on of transfer.

 vi. No limita�on in payment of dividend is s�pulated in any debt instrument or otherwise.

(d) Other rights of the securi�es holders;
In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act 1994, Ar�cles of Associa�on of the Company and other relevant 
rules in force, the shares of the Company are transferable. The Company shall not charge any fee, other than 
Government du�es for registering transfer of shares. No transfer shall be made to a minor or person of unsound 
mind.

The Directors shall present the financial statements as required under the law & Interna�onal Accoun�ng Stand-
ard. Financial statements will be prepared in accordance with the Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standards consist-
ently applied throughout the subsequent periods and present with the objec�ve of providing maximum disclo-
sure as par law and Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standard to the shareholders regarding the financial and opera-
�onal posi�on of the company. The shareholders shall have the right to receive all periodical statement and 
reports, audited as well as un audited, published by the company from �me to �me.

The shareholder holding minimum of 10% shares of paid-up capital of the company shall have the right to requi-
si�on extra ordinary General Mee�ng of the company as provided for the sec�on 84 of the Companies Act 1994.
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Other Informa�on
Management is responsible for the other informa�on. The other informa�on comprises all of the informa�on in the annual 
report other than financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other informa�on.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other informa�on and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

Prospectus - 161



TRUST ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LTD.

In connec�on with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other informa�on and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other informa�on is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 
performed, we concluded that there is a material misstatement of this other informa�on; we are required to report 
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibili�es of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements and Internal Controls 
Management is responsible for the prepara�on and fair presenta�on of the Financial Statements in accordance with 
IFRSs, The Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 2010, the Insurance Rules 1958, the Securi�es and Exchange Rules 
2020 and other applicable laws and regula�ons for such internal control as management determines is necessary to 
enable the prepara�on of Financial Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the company's ability to con�nue as 
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, ma�ers related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accoun�ng unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease opera�ons, or has no realis�c 
alterna�ve but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the company's financial repor�ng process.

Auditor’s Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skep�cism 
throughout the audit. We also:

• Iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detec�ng a material misstatement resul�ng from 
fraud is higher than for one resul�ng from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, inten�onal omissions, 
misrepresenta�ons, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effec�veness of the 
Company’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used and the reasonableness of accoun�ng es�mates and 
related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accoun�ng and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or condi�ons that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to con�nue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncer-
tainty exists, we are required to draw a�en�on in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or condi�ons may cause the 
Company’s to cease to con�nue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure, and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transac�ons and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presenta�on.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other ma�ers, the planned scope and 
�ming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
iden�fy during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with the rela�onships and other ma�ers that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the ma�ers communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those ma�ers that were of 
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
ma�ers. We describe these ma�ers in our auditor’s report unless law or regula�on precludes public disclosure about 
the ma�er or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a ma�er should not be communicated in 
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communica�on.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 2010, the Insurance Rules 1958, the Securi�es and 
Exchange Rules 2020 and the other applicable Laws and Regula�ons, We also report that:

a) We have obtained all the informa�on and explana�ons which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verifica�on thereof;

b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts, records and other statutory books as required by law have been kept 
by the Company so far as it appeared from our examina�on of those books;

c) The Company’s management has followed relevant provisions of laws and rules in managing the affairs of the 
company and proper books of accounts, records and other statutory books have been properly maintained and 
(where applicable) proper returns of the purpose of our audit have been received adequately from branches but 
the branches have not been visited by us;

d) As per sec�on 62(2) of the Insurance Act, 2010 as amended, we cer�fy that to the best of our knowledge and 
belief and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, all expenses of management wherever 
incurred and whether directly or indirectly, in respect of insurance business of the company transacted in Bang-
ladesh during the year under report have been fully charged to the related Revenue Account of the company; 

e) The informa�on and explana�on required by us have been received and found sa�sfactory;

f) The Company’s Statement of Financial Posi�on, Life Revenue Account, Statement of changes in shareholder's 
equity and Statement of Cash Flows of the Company together with the Annexed Notes dealt with by the report 
are in agreement with the books of accounts and returns;

g) The expenditure incurred was for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

h) The company has complied with relevant laws and regula�ons pertaining to reserves.

Sd/-
Fouzia Haque, FCA

Enrolment No-1032
Partner

FAMES & R
Chartered Accountants

DVC # 2208171032AS943217
Place : Dhaka
Date  : 17th August, 2022

Prospectus - 163



TRUST ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LTD.

Prospectus - 164



TRUST ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LTD.

Prospectus - 165



Prospectus - 166

TRUST ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LTD.



Prospectus - 167

TRUST ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LTD.



Prospectus - 168

TRUST ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LTD.



Prospectus - 169

TRUST ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LTD.



Prospectus - 170

TRUST ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LTD.



Prospectus - 171

TRUST ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LTD.

Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

 For the Half Year ended 30th June 2022

1.00 Legal Status and Nature of the business:
1.01    Legal Status

Trust Islami Life Insurance Ltd. was incorporated on February 05, 2014 and Register with the Register of Joint 
Stock Company and firms with the Issuance of Insurance Cer�ficate No- C-113930/14 date: 5th February 2014.

1.02  Nature of Business
Trust Islami life Insurance Ltd. is engaged in Ordinary life Insurance, Group Insurance (GI) and Non-tradi�onal 
Micro Insurance Business.

1.03  Principle ac�vi�es of the company
Trust Islami Life Insurance Ltd. is engaged in Islamic Life Insurance business since February 5th 2014. The 
Company offers vide variety of Insurance Policies while fulfils the requirements of all segments of the Society.

1.04 Address of Registered office and place of business of the company
The Registered office of the company is situated at Paltan China Town (17th Floor) West Tower, 67/1, Naya 
Paltan (V.I.P Road) Dhaka-1000.

2.00   Basis of prepara�on and statement of compliance:

2.01   Prepara�on of the Financial Statements
As per the requirements of IAS 1; “Presenta�on of Financial Statements’’ the Financial Statements have been 
prepared on the basis of Going-concern concept under generally accepted accoun�ng principles according to 
the historical cost conven�on. Requirements as to disclosure of financial principles according to the historical 
cost conven�on. Requirements as to disclosure of financial informa�on warranted by the Insurance Act 2010 
have been adhered to in presen�ng financial statements.

2.02  Components of the Financial Statements: 
 The Financial Statements include the following components:
 I) Statement of Financial Posi�on; 
 II) Life Revenue Account;
 III) Statement of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity;
 IV) Statement of Cash Flows;
 V) Statement of life Insurance Fund ;
 VI) Classifica�on of the Assets (Form AA); and 
 VII) Accoun�ng Policies and Explanatory Notes.

2.03  Statement of Compliance
The following underlying assump�ons, measurement base, Laws, Rules, Regula�ons and accoun�ng 
pronouncements have been considered in preparing and presen�ng the Financial Statements:

 • Going Concern
 • Accrual unless stated otherwise
 • Historical cost conven�on
 • The Insurance Act 2010
 • The Insurance Act 1938
 • The Insurance Rule 1958
 • The Companies Act 1994
 • The Bangladesh Securi�es and Exchange rules 1987
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 • The Income Tax Ordinance and Rules 1984
 • Value Added Tax Act 2012 & Rules 2016
 • The Lis�ng Regula�ons of Dhaka and Chi�agong Stock Exchanges
 • Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standards (IAS) and Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standard (IFRS) and 

Interpreta�ons which have been adopted by the Ins�tute of chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB).
 • Interna�onal Standard on Audi�ng (ISA)
 • Any other laws, regula�ons, covenants, conven�ons and prac�ces prevailing concerning the life insurance 

industry in Bangladesh.

Where the requirements of the Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 1938 & 2010 and the Bangladesh 
Securi�es and Exchange Rules 1987 differ with the requirements of these standards, the requirements of the 
Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 1938 & 2010 and the Bangladesh Securi�es and Exchange rules 1987 
take precedence.

2.04 Applica�on of IAS and IFRS: 
The Accoun�ng and Financial Repor�ng Standards that are applicable for the financial statements for the year 
under review, include the following: 

2.05  Repor�ng period
Financial Statements of the Company has been covered the period from 1st January 2022 to June 30, 2022.

2.06  Repor�ng Currency
The figures in the Financial Statements represented Bangladesh Currency (BDT). Figures have been rounded 
off to the nearest integer.

2:07   Going Concern
The company can con�nue opera�ng without the significant threat of liquida�on, and therefore remain in 
business for the foreseeable future. The going-concern value of a company is typically much higher than its 
liquida�on value because it includes intangible assets and customer loyalty as well as any poten�al for future returns.

3.00  Significant Accoun�ng Policies:

3.01  Revenue recogni�on



Prospectus - 173

TRUST ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LTD.

The revenue is recognized a�er sa�sfying as the condi�ons for revenue recogni�on as provided IFRS 15 
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers” in compliance with IFRS 4 “Insurance Contract” Detailed income 
wise policy for revenue recogni�on is as given under:

a) Premium Income
The income from premium is comprised of the total amount of premium earned on various classes of life 
insurance business during the year, the gross amount of premium earned against various policies, the amount 
of claims less re-insurance se�led during the year have all been duly accounted for in the books of account of 
the Company. While preparing the financial statements during the period, the effect of re-insurance has been 
accepted and re-insurance ceded as well as the effect of total es�mated liabili�es in respect of outstanding 
claims have been given effect to the accounts at the end of the year.

3.02 Investment 
Profit on different investments is recognized on accrual basis as per IFRS-15” Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers” Por�olio gain on investments in shares is recognized as income and credited to investment 
income in the life revenue account as per IAS-39’’Financial Instrument: Recogni�on”. Capital gain is recognize 
when it is realized and recognized as income and credited to investment income in the life revenue account as 
per IAS-39”Financial Instrument: Recogni�on”.

3.03    Premium Deposit
Premium deposit represents premium received but risk has not yet been accepted because of the pending 
underwri�ng decision as at 30 June, 2022.

3.04   Compara�ve Figures 
Compara�ve informa�on has been disclosed in respect of the year 2021 for all numerical data in the financial 
statements and also the narra�ve and descrip�ve informa�on when it is relevant for understanding of the 
current year’s financial statements. The en�ty changes the presenta�on or classifica�on of items in its finan-
cial statements according to necessity; it shall reclassify the compara�ve amounts also. During the period the 
reclassifica�on considers in the line items of revenue account under expenses of management. The reclassifi-
ca�on took place to get a clear idea to compare the specific line items of the revenue account but previous 
year’s six monthly Revenue Accounts is not audited.
                 Amount in Taka
                   30.06.2022        31.12.2021
SHAREHOLDERS’ CAPITAL
Authorised Capital
10,00,00,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10 each                       1,000,000,000            1,000,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital           240,000,000                240,000,000

240,00,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10 each
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3.05 Deprecia�on on Fixed Assets
Deprecia�on on Fixed Assets has been calculated adop�ng straight line method at varying rates depending on 
the class and es�mated useful life of assets. Methods and rated of providing deprecia�on are consistently 
applied in rela�on to the previous year.

  Furniture and Fixture 10%
  Electrical Equipment 20%
  Office Equipment 10%
  Vehicles 20%
  Telephone Installa�on 20%
  Computer and Typewriter 20%
  Computer So�ware 20%
  House Proper�es 2.5% to 5%
  Office Decora�on  10%

3.06 Commission
Commission to Insurance Agents (Less that received on Re-insurance) represents First Year Commission, 
Renewal Commission and Group Commission.

Allowances and Commission (Other than Commission to Insurance Agents less that on Re-insurance) repre-
sent Marke�ng Officers Salary and Allowance including incen�ve Bonus.

3.07 Cash Flow Statement
Cash Flow Statement is prepared in accordance with IAS-7 and Cash Flow from opera�ng ac�vi�es have been 
presented under direct method as outlined in the Securi�es and Exchange Rules 1987

Cash in hand and cash at bank have been considered as the Cash and Cash equivalents for the prepara�on of 
the Financial Statement, which were held and available for use by the Company without any restric�on.

3.08 Provision for liabili�es
According to IAS-37 “Provision, Con�ngent Liabili�es and Con�ngent Assets” the company recognizes the 
provision in the balance sheet when the company has a legal or construc�on obliga�on as a result of past 
event and it is probable that an ou�low of economic benefits will be required to se�le the obliga�on.
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3.09  Taxa�on
3.09.01 Current Tax

The Company is engaged in life insurance business and its taxa�on is based on taxable income determined 
under the Fourth Schedule of the income Tax ordinance, 1984. Provision of Income Tax is based on the best 
judgment of management. 

3.09.02 Deferred Tax
The company does not provide for deferred taxa�on as current tax has been calculated on the profits and 
gains based on the actuarial valua�on which is computed in accordance with the provision in the Fourth 
Schedule of the income Tax Ordinance and not under different heads of income. There is no effect of tax 
base asset and liabili�es, the Management feels it is not necessary to make es�mate of deferred tax 
assets/liabili�es at this stage as per the provision of IAS-12.

3.10  Employees Benefit Plans
Trust Islami Life Insurance Ltd. offers a number of benefit plans, which includes Contributory Provident 
Fund, Gratuity and also Fes�val Bonus, which have been accounted for in accordance with the provision of 
Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standard-19, "Employee Benefit." Bases of enumera�ng the above benefits 
schemes operated by the company are outlined below:

3.10.01 Provident Fund
The Company Operates a Contributory Recognized Provident Fund for all its permanents employees. The 
provident fund is administered by the Board of Trustee and is funded by contribu�ons from employees and 
from the company @ 10% of the basic pay, these contribu�ons are invested separately from the company 
business.

3.10.02 Gratuity
Employees of the company, who served the company for five years or above is en�tled to get gratuity 
benefit at rates determined by the service rules of the fund. Presently the Gratuity is being paid at the �me 
of the final se�lement of the respec�ve employees. In respect of Defined Benefit Plans of TILI Ltd. (Trust 
Islami Life Insurance Ltd.) pay its employee Gratuity Fund as post-employment benefits as per service rules. 
The plan is unfunded though no provision recognizes as allowable expenditure by the NBR. The en�ty only 
booked the amount that directly paid to the employee as a post-employment benefit. The amount also 
considers as allowable expenditure by the NBR. In respect of that, no �ming difference arises related to 
Deferred Taxa�on.

3.11  Related Party disclosures (IAS 24) 
Par�es are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise signifi-
cant influence over the other party in making financial and opera�onal decision and include associated 
companies with or without common Directors and key management posi�ons. The company has entered 
into transac�on with other related en��es in normal course of business that fall within the defini�on of 
related party as per  Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standards (IAS) 24: ‘‘Related Party Disclosure’’. Transac�on 
with related par�es are executed on the same terms, including interest rate and collateral as those prevail-
ing at the �me for comparable transac�ons with other customer of similar creden�als and do not involve 
more than a normal risk.
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In complience with sec�on 23 (1) of Insurance Act 2010, the amount has been deposited into Bangladesh 
Bank which the Bank has issued 20 years Bangladesh Bank Govt. Treasury Bond in favour of the Company with 
profit @ 9.29% per annum.

In compliande with the IDRA Circular no Life-04/2012, dated 11 June 2012, Financial Instruments: Recogni�on 
and Measurement, Investmetn made in the shares of the different Companies is recorded at fair value which 
was earlier recorded at cost. As a consequence of adop�ng IDRA Circular no Life-04/2012 the value of the 
investments has been adjusted to bring it at par with the fair value. Difference between fair value and cost 
price has been booked under Fair Value Change Account in the Balance Sheet.
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The amount represents premium receivable as on 30th June of the concerned financial year for which 
grace periods did not expire as on the above date. The outstanding premium amount have been 
realized by 31th July of the following period.
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Financial Statement for the period ended June 30, 2022 were audited by us and  for the Year ended 31 December 2019,2020 & 2021 
audited by us and the year ended 31 Dec.  2018 audited by Mostafa kamal & Co. and 2017 audited by Mohammad Ata Karim & CO.
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Financial Statement for the period ended June 30, 2022 has been audited by us and  for the year ended December 31, 
2021,December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 were audited by Kazi Zahir Khan & Co. for the year ended December 31, 2018 were 
audited by Mostafa Kamal & Co.  for the year ended December 31, 2017 were audited by Ata Karim  & Co. 
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(c) Auditors report under Sec�on 135(1), Paragraph 24(1) of PartII of Schedule III of the Company Law, 1994. The report shall 
include compara�ve income statements and balancesheet and aforemen�oned ra�os for immediate precedingfive 
accoun�ng years of the issuer. If the issuer has beenin commercial opera�on for less than five years, theabove men�oned 
inclusion and submission will have tobe made for the period since commercial opera�on;

Auditor's Report in pursuance to Sec�on 135(1) and paragraph 24(1) (3) and 25 of part-II of the Schedule III of the Companies 
Act, 1994

As required under sec�on 135(1), Para 24(1), Part II of the Third Schedule of Companies Act 1994, we appended below the 
following financial informa�on of  Trust Islami Life Insurance  Limited (TILIL) for the period ended June 30, 2022 were audited 
by us and  for the Year ended 31 December 2019,2020 & 2021 audited by us and the year ended 31 Dec.  2018 audited by 
Mostafa kamal & Co. and 2017 audited by Mohammad Ata Karim & CO.

1. Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited was incorporated on 05 February 2014 and started its commercial opera�on from 12 
February 2014

2. The opera�ng  results of the company over the last five years is as follows:
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D. Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited was incorporated in Bangladesh as a Public Limited Company with the issuance 
of Cer�ficate of incorpora�on bearing Reg. No. C-113930/14 dated on 05 February 2014 under companies act 
1994. The Company was also registered with the Insurance development and regulatory authority on 12 Febru-
ary, 2014 bearing registra�on no. Life 12/2014 under Insurance Act 2010.

E. The Company started its commercial opera�on in 12 February 2014.

F. The Company has no subsidiary as on the balance sheet date.

G. No proceeds or part of the proceeds of the issue of shares would be applied directly by the company in the 
purchase of any business.

Financial Statement for the period ended June 30, 2022 has  audited by us and  for the Year ended 31 December 
2021, December31, 2020, December 31,2019 were audited by us and the year ended 31 Decmber 2018 audited by 
Mostafa kamal & Co. for the year ended December 31,2017 were audited by  Ata Karim & CO.

Date : 28 August, 2022 
Place : Dhaka

Sd/-
FAMES & R

Chartered Accountants
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(f) Earnings Per Share (EPS) on fully diluted basis (with the total exis�ng number of shares) in addi�on to the 
weighted average number of shares basis. Future projected Net Income should not be considered while calcu-
la�ng the weighted average EPS;

(g) All extra-ordinary income or non-recurring income coming from other than core opera�ons should be shown 
separately while showing the Net Profit as well as the Earnings Per Share;

TILIL has no extra-ordinary income from other than the core opera�ons. It has some interest income which is 
generated from the statutory FDR maintained with banks on regular basis.

(h) Quarterly or half-yearly EPS should not be annualized while calcula�ng the EPS;
This informa�on is not applicable for TILIL.

(i) Net asset value (with and without considering revalua�on surplus or reserve) per unit of the securi�es being 
offered at the date of the latest audited statement of financial posi�on.

(j) The Commission may require the issuer to re-audit the audited financial statements, if any deficiency or 
anomaly is found in the financial statements. In such a case, cost of audit should be borne by the concerned 
issuer.

If require, TILIL will bear the cost of audit.
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(k) Following statements for the last five years or any shorterperiod of commercial opera�on cer�fied by the 
auditors:-

(a) Statement of long term and short term borrowingsincluding borrowing from related party or connected per-
sons with rate of interest and interest paid or accrued;

Cer�ficate of long term and short borrowing including borrowing from related party or connected persons with rate 
of interest and paid/accrued

A�er due verifica�on of provided last five years Audited Financial Statement, we cer�fy that the Long Term and Short 
Term Borrowing Including Borrowing from Related Party or Connected Persons of the Trust Islami life Insurance  
Limited for the last five years and six months made up as follows:

The Trust Islami life Insurance Limited does not have any Long Term and Short Term Borrowing from related Party or 
Connected Persons for the period from 01 January 2017 to 31 December 2021.
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Financial Statement for the period ended June 30, 2022 has been audited by us and  for the year ended December 
31, 2021,December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 were audited by Kazi Zahir Khan & Co,. for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2018 were audited by Mostafa Kamal & Co.,  for the year ended December 31, 2017 were audited by Ata 
Karim  & Co. 

(b) Statement of principal terms of secured loans andassets on which charge have been created agains�hose loans 
with names of lenders, purpose,sanc�oned amount, rate of interest, primary security,collateral or other 
security, re-payment schedule andstatus;

Statement of principal terms of secured loans and assets on which charge have been Created against those loans
This is to cer�fy that the Principal Terms of Secured Loans as per Agreement and Assets on which charge have been 
Created Against Those Loans of Trust Islami life Insurance Limited for the period ended June 30 ,2022 and  Year ended 
from  01 January 2017 to 31 December 2021 were as follows :

Financial Statement for the period ended June 30, 2022 has been  audited by us and  for the year ended December 
31, 2021,December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 were audited by Kazi Zahir Khan & Co. for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2018 were audited by Mostafa Kamal & Co.  for the year ended December 31, 2017 were audited by Ata Karim  
& Co. 

Date: 28 August  2022
Place : Dhaka

Sd/-
FAMES & R

Chartered Accountants
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(c) Statement of unsecured loans with terms and condi�ons;

Statement of unsecured loans with terms & condi�ons
This is to cer�fy that Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited has not taken any unsecured loan from any financial 
ins�tute/related party/person for the last five years.

Financial Statement for the period ended June 30, 2022 has been audited by us and  for the year ended December 
31, 2021,December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 were audited by Kazi Zahir Khan & Co. for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2018 were audited by Mostafa Kamal & Co.  for the year ended December 31, 2017 were audited by Ata Karim  
& Co.

(d) Statement of inventories showing amount of raw material, packing material, stock-in-process and finished
goods, consumable items, store and spares parts, inventory of trading goods etc.;

Cer�ficate on inventories showing amount of raw material, packing material, stock-in-process and finished goods, 
consumable items, store & spares parts, inventory of trading goods etc.

This is to cer�fy that Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited has no inventories except Stamps, Prin�ng and Sta�onary 
showing amount for the last five years.

Financial Statement for the period ended June 30, 2022 were audited by us and  for the year ended December 31, 
2021,December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 were audited by Kazi Zahir Khan & Co. for the year ended December 
31, 2018 were audited by Mostafa Kamal & Co.  for the year ended December 31, 2017 were audited by Ata Karim  & 
Co.

Date: 28 August ,2022
Place : Dhaka

Sd/-
FAMES & R

Chartered Accountants

Date: 28 August ,2022
Place : Dhaka

Sd/-
FAMES & R

Chartered Accountants
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(e) Statement of trade receivables showing receivable from related party and connected persons;

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN
          
This is to cer�fy that trust islami life Insurance Ltd. has  receivable with connected persons Employee Md. Jahangir 
Alam Chowdhury Tk. 114,031 , Md. Abdul Kader Tk. 420,052  & Sayeda Afrin Tk. 40,913 during the period from 1st 
January 2017 to 30, June 2022.

Financial Statement for the period ended June 30, 2022 has audited by us and  for the year ended December 31, 
2021,December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 were audited by Kazi Zahir Khan & Co. for the year ended December 
31, 2018 were audited by Mostafa Kamal & Co.  for the year ended December 31, 2017 were audited by Ata Karim  & 
Co. 

(f) Statement of any loan given by the issuer including loans to related party or connected persons with rate of 
interest and interest realized or accrued;

Statement of any loan given by the issuer including loans to related party or connected persons with rate of 
interest and interest realized/ accrued.
          
This to to cer�fy that, there is no such loan given by Trus Islami Life Insurance Limited including loan to related party 
or connected persons hence there is no interest realized or accrued for last five years.
          
Financial Statement for the period ended June 30, 2022 were audited by us and  for the year ended December 31, 
2021,December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 were audited by Kazi Zahir Khan & Co. for the year ended December 
31, 2018 were audited by Mostafa Kamal & Co.  for the year ended December 31, 2017 were audited by Ata Karim  & 
Co. 

Date: 28 August ,2022
Place : Dhaka

Sd/-
FAMES & R

Chartered Accountants

Date: 28 August ,2022
Place : Dhaka

Sd/-
FAMES & R

Chartered Accountants
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(g) Statement of other income showing interest income, dividend income, discount received, other non opera�ng 
income;

Statement of other income showing interest income, dividend income, discount received and other 
non-opera�ng income

From our sample basis  verifica�on, other income showing Profit income, dividend income, discount received, 
other non-opera�ng income of Trust Islami Life Insurance  Limited for the last five years as follows:

Financial Statement for the period ended June 30, 2022 has been audited by us and  for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2021,December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 were audited by Kazi Zahir Khan & Co. for the year ended 
December 31, 2018 were audited by Mostafa Kamal & Co.  for the year ended December 31, 2017 were audited 
by Ata Karim  & Co.

Date: 28 August ,2022
Place : Dhaka

Sd/-
FAMES & R

Chartered Accountants
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(h) Statement of turnover showing separately in cash and through banking channel;

Statement of turnover showing separately in cash and through banking channel
From our sample basis verifica�on, the turnover (Net Premium Income) showing separately in cash and through 
banking channel of Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited during last five years were as follows:

Financial Statement for the period ended June 30, 2022 were audited by us and  for the year ended December 31, 
2021,December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 were audited by Kazi Zahir Khan & Co. for the year ended December 
31, 2018 were audited by Mostafa Kamal & Co.  for the year ended December 31, 2017 were audited by Ata Karim  & 
Co. 

Date: 28 August ,2022
Place : Dhaka

Sd/-
FAMES & R

Chartered Accountants
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(h) Statement of related party transac�on;
A�er due verifica�on, we cer�fy that as per audited financial statements, books of accounts and records, the status 
of related party transac�ons of Trust Islami Life  Insurance Limited for the last five years were as under

Financial Statement for the period ended June 30, 2022 has been audited by us and  for the year ended December 31, 
2021,December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 were audited by Kazi Zahir Khan & Co. for the year ended December 31, 
2018 were audited by Mostafa Kamal & Co.  for the year ended December 31, 2017 were audited by Ata Karim  & Co.

Date: 28 August ,2022
Place : Dhaka

Sd/-
FAMES & R

Chartered Accountants
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(j) Reconcilia�on of business income shown in tax return with net income shown in audited financial statements;

A�er due verifica�on, as per relevant document of Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited has submi�ed Income Tax 
Return for last five years, assessment under processes .

Financial Statement for the period ended June 30, 2022 has been audited by us and  for the year ended December 
31, 2021,December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 were audited by Kazi Zahir Khan & Co. for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2018 were audited by Mostafa Kamal & Co.  for the year ended December 31, 2017 were audited by Ata Karim  
& Co.  

(k) Confirma�on that all receipts and payments of the issuer above Tk.500,000/- (five lac) were made through 
banking channel;

So far we varified , receipts and payments above Tk. 5,00,000/- (five lac) were made through banking channel by 
Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited during last five years 

Financial Statement for the period ended June 30, 2022 has audited by us and  for the year ended December 31, 
2021,December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 were audited by Kazi Zahir Khan & Co. for the year ended December 
31, 2018 were audited by Mostafa Kamal & Co.  for the year ended December 31, 2017 were audited by Ata Karim  & 
Co. 

Date: 28 August ,2022
Place : Dhaka

Sd/-
FAMES & R

Chartered Accountants

Date: 28 August ,2022
Place : Dhaka

Sd/-
FAMES & R

Chartered Accountants
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(l) Confirma�on that Bank Statements of the issuer are inconformity with its books of accounts;

Auditors’ disclosure regarding confirma�on that bank statements of the issuer are in conformity with its books of 
accounts

A�er due verifica�on, we confirm that the bank statements of Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited are in conformity 
with its books of accounts for last five years.
          
Financial Statement for the period ended June 30, 2022 hasaudited by us and  for the year ended December 31, 
2021,December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 were audited by Kazi Zahir Khan & Co. for the year ended December 
31, 2018 were audited by Mostafa Kamal & Co.  for the year ended December 31, 2017 were audited by Ata Karim  & 
Co. 

Statement of payment status of TAX, VAT and other taxes/du�es
This is to cer�fy that the payment status of income tax and other taxes/du�es of Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited 
are as follows:

Financial Statement for the period ended June 30, 2022 hasaudited by us and  for the year ended December 31, 
2021,December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 were audited by Kazi Zahir Khan & Co. for the year ended December 
31, 2018 were audited by Mostafa Kamal & Co.  for the year ended December 31, 2017 were audited by Ata Karim  & 
Co. 

Date: 28 August ,2022
Place : Dhaka

Sd/-
FAMES & R

Chartered Accountants

Date: 28 August ,2022
Place : Dhaka

Sd/-
FAMES & R

Chartered Accountants
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Alpha Rating
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AlphaRa�ng assigns long term ra�ng “BBB+“ (Pronounced as ‘Triple B Plus’) and short term ra�ng “ST-3” in favor of 
Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited (herein a�er referred as ‘Trust Life or the company’). The ra�ng is based on the 
audited financial statement of FY 2019 to FY 2021, for the year ended 31 December and other qualita�ve informa-
�on. While assigning the ra�ng AlphaRa�ng has considered both favorable and unfavorable movement in overall 
performance of the company.

The ra�ng mainly considers increased total assets base, growth in gross premium, growing pre-tax income, progres-
sive life fund, actuarial surplus in current year, improved solvency, maintaining management expense efficiently, 
good claim se�lement in all year, improvement in total investment, sufficient current ra�o etc. The ra�ng has also 
considered qualita�ve aspects of the company such as experienced management team, qualified board of directors, 
adequate internal control and sa�sfactory informa�on technology.

However, the ra�ng has constrained by low life fund, decline in investment income as well as investment yield, 
inadequate capital, declined net investment income ra�o, unavailability of actuarial valua�on report of FY 2019 & FY 
2020 and threat of increasing future compe��veness. Moreover, the ra�ng has also considered the external facili�es 
availed by Trust Life from Social Islami Bank Limited, Mouchak Branch, Dhaka.
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Company Profile
Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited was incorporated on 05 February, 2014 and register with Registrar of Joint Stock 
Companies & Firms with the issuance of insurance cer�ficate no. C-113930/14 date: 05 February, 2014. Trust Life is 
engaged in Islamic Life Insurance business since its incorpora�on. The company offers variety of insurance policies 
while fulfils the requirements of all segments of the society.

Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited established mainly through the ini�a�ve of a few enthusias�c entrepreneurs of the 
country with the vision of collec�ve effort to bring the Bangladeshi ci�zens in different professions under the life 
insurance coverage. Even more, the Bangladeshi wage earners are also included in the main stream products and 
insurance coverage called Manpower Insurance.

The Board of Directors of Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited decided to raise capital through Ini�al Public Offering 
(IPO) by a way of raising 16.00 million nos. ordinary shares at an issue price of Taka 10.00 per share, total BDT 160.00 
million under Fixed Price Method of the Bangladesh Securi�es & Exchange Commission (Public Issue) Rules, 2015. 
Proceeds from Ini�al Public Offering (IPO) will be used for investment in FDR, Government Treasury Bonds, invest-
ment in capital market and for IPO Expenses.

Branch Network
Trust Life carries out its ac�vi�es through its head office located at Paltan China Town (17th Floor- West Tower), 67/1, 
Naya Paltan, (VIP Road), Dhaka-1000. Trust Life has 45 branches across the country covering major financial centers 
of Dhaka, Cha�ogram, Rajshahi, Khulna, Barisal Sylhet, Cumilla etc. with the assistance of 219 employees at the end 
of FY 2021.

Products
Currently, Trust life has 18 (Eighteen) insurance plans. It plans to bring in more insurance products with a�rac�ve 
features in the near future.
• Ordinary Endowments Insurance Plan
• An�cipated Endowment 03 Stage Payment Insurance Plan
• An�cipated Endowment 04 Stage Payment Insurance Plan
• An�cipated Endowment 05 Stage Payment Insurance Plan
• Biennial Payment Plan
• Single Premium Insurance Plan
• Child Protec�on Assurance Plan
• Pension Assurance Cum Pension Plan Without Profits
• Hajj Bima
• Denmohar Bima
• Manpower Export Insurance Plan
• Monthly Saving Micro Insurance Plan
• Group Term Life Insurance
• Money Back Term Insurance Plan
• Monthly Savings Insurance Plan- 2 Stage
• Diab-Double Indemnity Accident Benefit
• PDAB-Permanent Disability & Accident Benefit
• Group Health Insurance
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Ownership Pa�ern
Authorized share capital of Trust Life is BDT 1,000.00 million divided into 100 million ordinary shares of BDT 10.00 
each. Total paid-up capital is BDT 240.00 million divided into 24.00 million ordinary shares of BDT 10.00 each. As on 
31 December, 2021 company’s ownership pa�ern was following:

Name Number of Share % of Shareholding
Mohd. Ataur Rahman Bhuiyan 2,400,000 10.00
Iqbal Haider Chowdhury 2,400,000 10.00
Md. Zillur Rahman Mridha 2,400,000 10.00
Md. Jahangir Hossain Molla 2,400,000 10.00
Ayaz Waris Khan Warisi 2,400,000 10.00
Md. Abdul Wadud 1,000,000 4.17
Rafia Nusrat Khan Bro� 1,014,332 4.23
Rassad Abedin 1,555,999 6.48
Md. Maniruzzaman Molla 2,400,000 10.00
Rahad Abedin 1,555,999 6.48
Kasfia Nusrat Khan Purna 1,014,332 4.23
Farhana Akhter 812,000 3.38
Rubina Parvin 35,334 0.15
Shammi Akhter 35,334 0.15
Shanaz Parveen 35,334 0.15
Mukitur Rahman 35,334 0.15
Abdullah Al-Mamun 875,334 3.65
Saifun Nahar Kakuly 70,668 0.29
Laila Arjuman Banu 300,000 1.25
Abullah Al Fahad 840,000 3.50
Rehana Arjuman Hye 420,000 1.75
Total 24,000,000 100.00%

Industry Overview
The role of insurance in managing risks in an economy cannot be overstated. At a micro level, insurance safeguards 
households and companies from a myriad of risks. From a macro perspec�ve, it reduces the financial burden on a 
government and creates a stable environment in which businesses can thrive and succeed. While Bangladesh has 
taken gigan�c strides on the path to economic prosperity, its insurance sector is a vital area that requires considerable 
a�en�on and can benefit significantly from regulatory reforms.

Snapshot of Bangladesh’s insurance industry
Currently, Bangladesh’s insurance sector comprises 46 non-life insurance companies and 33 life insurance companies. 
In addi�on, there are two state-owned insurance corpora�ons-one in the non-life segment and the other in the life 
segment.

The gross premium volume of life insurance in Bangladesh stands at BDT 96,082.20 million and that of non-life stands 
at BDT 36,827.00 million at the end of 2019, which was BDT 89,921.30 million for life insurance and BDT 33,907.90 
for non- life insurance at the end of 2018. Moreover, 6.85% and 8.61% growth in gross premium has been observed 
in life & non- life insurance respec�vely in 2019. However, total gross premium (life & non-life) has grown to BDT 
132,909.10 million with a growth rate of 7.33% in 2019 (see Figure 1). Life insurance cons�tutes 72.29% of 
Bangladesh’s insurance market and non-life insurance cons�tutes 27.71%.
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Micro-insurance and Islamic insurance are also a part of Bangladesh’s insurance sector. In 2019, approximately 1.61 
million new life and 2.61 million new non-life insurance policies were issued. Further, the number of ac�ve life insur-
ance policies was approximately 9.68 million in 2019. The assets of all insurance companies in Bangladesh stood at 
BDT 522,534.40 million at the end of 2019, with an average growth rate of 4.50% from 2018. Investments in both life 
and non-life insurance companies have grown at an average rate of 4.25% in 2019. The life insurance sector has a 
compe��ve landscape, with market share being closely distributed among mul�ple players.

As per the provisions enunciated in the Motor Vehicles Ordinance, 1983 (hereina�er referred to as the MVO, 1983) 
taking a motor vehicle insurance was mandatory for the owners of motor vehicles except for the ones owned by the 
government. The newly enacted Road Transport Act, 2018 has made Act Liability Insurance (Third Party Motor Insur-
ance) op�onal to the owners to take such insurance and instructed Police authority to curb prac�ce for verifying 
obligatory insurance cer�ficate and as such no penal ac�on.

Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority (IDRA) has also cancelled the product “Third Party Motor Insur-
ance”. Now the owners of motor vehicles are to take only “Comprehensive Motor Insurance Policy” for compensa-
�on of loss or damages of vehicle as well as passengers. Now Police Authority is not checking motor insurance cer�fi-
cate and the owners of vehicle are reluctant to take comprehensive motor insurance policy. This situa�on has badly 
affected the motor insurance premium income.

Benchmarking Bangladesh’s insurance industry
Although Bangladesh’s insurance sector has witnessed some growth, in comparison with other emerging na�ons, 
there is a lot of room for improvement. According to the Seventh Five Year Plan (2016–2020) of the Government of 
Bangladesh (GoB), a majority of the popula�on across product segments (life and non-life) remains untapped by the 
insurance market.

Life insurance penetra�on (insurance premiums as a share of GDP) in Bangladesh was 0.30% in 2019, while the 
average for emerging countries was 1.70% as per Swiss Re, a leading global re-insurer. In case of non-life insurance, 
it was 0.10% in Bangladesh, whereas 1.50% for emerging na�ons. In the year, overall insurance penetra�on was less 
than 0.50%, which was 0.57% in 2018 and 0.55% the year before. Bangladesh’s insurance penetra�on mostly been 
on a downward trend as well as falls behind that of several other developing countries. Bangladesh’s insurance sector 
is currently unable to keep pace with emerging markets around the globe. To bring this to perspec�ve, total infla�on 
adjusted premium growth was 3.10% in Bangladesh in 2019. However, this was 8.10% in emerging countries.

Need for key insurance products in Bangladesh
Agricultural sector
The sector accounts for more than a third of all employment in Bangladesh and is an integral part of the country’s 
economy. Bangladesh suffers from agricultural produc�on ‘shocks’ every five years, leading to a drop of up to 50% in 
crop income for rural households. This is one of the leading causes of poverty among many small- and medium-scale 
farmers. Moreover, there are very few providers of agricultural insurance products. Dedicated efforts to increase the 
penetra�on of different insurance products by private and state-owned companies, facilitated by conducive regula-
�ons, can help farmers transfer some of these risks and reduce their extreme income vola�lity.

Health sector
Health insurance is another crucial area that needs development. Health insurance is virtually non-existent in 
Bangladesh’s public and private sectors. Bangladesh’s expenditure on health is only 2.64% of its GDP―the lowest in 
South Asia. Close to 9% of households make huge healthcare payments and 7% have to finance their healthcare costs 
by selling their assets. People in rural areas are especially vulnerable to falling into the poverty trap. Pension schemes 
are mostly seen in the Government sector and most of the elderly popula�on relies on family support for sustenance. 
As Bangladesh develops and life expectancy rises, its elderly popula�on will increase propor�onately. The insurance 
sector can play a vital role in reducing the burden on the overall spending on healthcare and contribute posi�vely 
towards increasing the livelihood of the general public of the na�on.
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Challenges and Opportuni�es
Key challenges

Various challenges underlie the limited growth of Bangladesh’s insurance sector. For one, the rela�onship between 
customers and insurance companies is marked by lack of trust. According to a study by PwC, a majority of Bangla-
deshi people do not trust insurance agents, and there is limited awareness regarding life insurance products. Claim 
se�lement- related problems also undermine the customer-insurer rela�onship, and the process of se�ling claims 
can be arduous and long. Secondly, Bangladesh lacks poten�al employees with adequate skills and knowledge to 
provide insurance services of the highest standard. In par�cular, employees holding advanced degrees in relevant 
fields are needed. From a macroeconomic perspec�ve, Bangladesh suffers due to uneven income distribu�on where 
a majority of the people are

poor and do not have the disposable income to afford insurance. This hinders the growth of the country’s overall 
insurance penetra�on rate.

Moreover, the country’s technological capaci�es need major advancement. Globally, the insurance sector has been 
undergoing digi�za�on and pla�orms are being created to op�mize customer service and streamline processes. In 
contrast, in Bangladesh, there is limited u�liza�on of modern technology and processes. Insurance companies do not 
have access to accurate and up-to-date demographic sta�s�cs for actuarial computa�ons. Lastly, the regulatory 
environment in Bangladesh leaves much to be desired.

Figure 1: Insurance Industry Trend of Bangladesh

Figure 2: Emerging Asia is projected to capture much of the growth in life insurance premiums
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Figure 3: Bangladesh’s economy hasseen steady growth

Favorable indicators for insurance sector development
Bangladesh sustained an impressive annual GDP growth rate of 8.2% in 2019. Bangladesh’s GDP growth rate has 
been increasing steadily for the last six years. Strong consump�on and public investment, recovery of readymade 
garments (RMG) exports and high remi�ance growth were the main propellers of economic growth, bolstering the 
rise in income per capita and growth of the middle-class popula�on.

Macroeconomic trends indicate poten�al growth in the country’s insurance sector, especially given Asia’s unprec-
edented growth. The region is set to represent a large share of overall life insurance premiums between 2016 and 
2025, rising from 11.6% to 21.7% (see Figure 2).

Bangladesh is poised to capture some of this growth. The country’s economic growth has been on an upward trend, 
which bodes well for the insurance sector (see Figure 3).

In the next decade, Bangladesh will con�nue to witness the rise of the middle and wealthy class in major ci�es. This 
could easily translate into a higher demand for insurance products as individuals and companies become increasingly 
risk aware.

As the country becomes increasingly industrialized, the demand for non-life insurance, such as fire, accident and 
property as well as workers’ compensa�on insurance, is likely to experience substan�al growth in demand.

Bancassurance opportunity
Bancassurance (a partnership between an insurance company and a bank where the bank sells insurance products) 
presents specific growth opportuni�es in Bangladesh’s insurance sector and can result in mutual benefits for banks, 
insurers, customers and regulators. Banks usually have the preexis�ng technological and human resources to provide 
the best customer services.

Thus, it is likely to be more convenient for customers to, for instance, pay premiums and repay cash loans backed by 
life insurance policies from their banks’ ATMs. Customers could also benefit from more customized product suites, 
including overdra� insurance, depositors’ insurance and loan-bundled insurance. Further, decreased costs of insur-
ance for insurers are likely to lower premium rates, making insurance more accessible to customers. Insurers may 
develop new financial products in collabora�on with their bank partners. In Bangladesh, it has been found that 
customers tend to trust banks more than they trust insurance agents.

On the regulatory side, financial ins�tu�ons that diversify their product range may reduce systema�c risk. In 
addi�on, insurers can access the various distribu�on channels of banks and widen their market reach without having 
to create a network of agents from scratch. Partnerships with banks could also boost insurers’ solvency levels. Selling 
a range of financial services to customers can be in the best interests of banks since diversifica�on into insurance 
products would give them a stable source of income. Banks can also reduce their risk-based capital needs for the 
same level of revenue. Another added benefit is that bundled insurance can help minimize the impact of 
non-performing assets (NPAs). As such, bancassurance can prove to be one of the fastest ways to raise Bangladesh’s 
insurance penetra�on rate.
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Conclusion
Despite various challenges, Bangladesh’s insurance sector has tremendous poten�al for growth, especially given the 
country’s favorable macroeconomic picture. Regulatory reforms and the introduc�on of bancassurance, health, 
expatriate, agriculture, educa�on, coastal, and public pension insurance products along with deep distribu�on 
channels can catalyze growth in the insurance sector.

Regula�ons that focus on reducing the risk of insolvency can help build trust in the market at a global level, which in 
turn will increase the flow of funds into the economy. With adequate capital requirements in place, insurance 
companies will serve as a safeguard for investments in infrastructure bonds, thereby boos�ng infrastructure development.

Strong regula�ons can also help strengthen the reinsurance market, which will ease the financial burden on the 
government arising from catastrophic events, thus directly contribu�ng towards development opportuni�es for the 
country. Further, well-defined regula�ons can drive compe��on, enabling companies to provide the best solu�ons 
and offer more op�ons to customers. Regulatory frameworks, ideally framed with reference to interna�onal stand-
ards and principles, will go a long way towards crea�ng a resilient insurance sector.

A resilient insurance sector can, in turn, have far-reaching economic, commercial and social benefits for Bangladesh. 
Thriving against odds, it could also, in the long run, encourage entrepreneurship and innova�on while facilita�ng risk 
transfer

COVID-19 Impact on Insurance Sector
Insurance which plays a vital role in managing risks both in micro and macro level has seen lowest penetra�ons in 
Bangladesh compared to its regional peers. Surprisingly, Insurance penetra�on has been declining for the past 
several years even though the country's Per-capita GDP has been showing a stable growth over a decade now. Insur-
ance penetra�on in Bangladesh stood at less than 0.50% in 2019, down from 1.13% in 2010. COVID-19 is impac�ng 
the insurance industry in mul�ple ways—from employee and business con�nuity issues to client service considera�ons 
and outlook.

Due to COVID-19, fire and marine insurance are expected to take the biggest hit. These two components consist of 
around 77% of non-life insurance companies total premium income (see Figure 4).

Fire Insurance
The biggest source of premium for non-life insurance company is fire insurance, which accounts for 43.1% of total 
premium income for non-life insurance companies. Factories for the RMG sector are the major driver of fire insur-
ance premium. A total of RMG factories—348 registered with BGMEA and 71 with BKMEA. According to BGMEA, 
some 268 factories out of 348 were closed temporarily, and the rest 80 were closed permanently.

A recent study by Human Rights Watch shows that when orders were cancelled, 72.1% of buyers refused to pay for 
raw materials already purchased by the supplier, and 91.3% of buyers refused to pay for the "cut-make-trim" cost - or 
produc�on cost - of the supplier. As a result, 58% of factories surveyed reported having to shut down most or all their 
opera�ons. This shut down of factories may strangle the fire premium growth rate.

Marine Insurance
Marine insurance that depends on import cargo accounts for 34.3% of the non-life insurance's total premium a year. 
Insurance companies’ premium income from marine insurance is expected to go down to a new low if this global 
pandemic countries and world trade con�nues to slow down.

Bangladesh import plummeted to deepen economic crisis amid COVID-19 pandemics. Businesses did not open LCs 
for products, including raw materials of Bangladesh’s largest expor�ng sector readymade garments, capital machin-
ery, and intermediate goods. Plumme�ng import means lower marine insurance premium for non-life insurance 
companies.
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*Figure 4: Premium Income Segment (FY 2019)

*Figure 5: Investment Por�olio Mix (FY 2019)

Motor and Miscellaneous
Most of the motor vehicles are covered under third party insurance coverage. Since premium charged under third 
party insurance coverage is insignificant and has a higher rate of renewal, premium from this category will have a less 
impact. But it is projected that, new motor sales to decline and first party insurance premium to decline too.

Avia�on insurance is major contributor of miscellaneous segment. In this COVID-9 situa�on, the avia�on sector may 
take a few years to turn around. As a result, it can be assumed that the insurance sector will face indirect losses.

Life Insurance Premium
The COVID-19 has hampered the county’s economic ac�vity at an unprecedented scale, raising the specter of job 
losses and salary cuts. The outbreak of the deadly disease could have a widespread impact on the job market of 
Bangladesh. Most of the organiza�ons would go for cost cu�ng and remunera�on on aggregate to fall. This may 
include reduced health insurance benefit for employees. This could have nega�ve impact for life insurance companies.

* 2019’s data is used here due to the non-availability of latest insurance year book.

Investment Income
Most of the �me insurance company’s premium income is eaten away by claim and management expenses. History 
shows most of the insurance companies have a combine ra�o (Direct Management expenses + Claims and Commis-
sion to net premium) above 80%. As a result, they rely on investment income for other expenses like provision, tax 
and indirect management expenses.

FDR consist 33.6% of total investment and other investment consist 28.6% of total investment (see Figure 5). Govt. 
has intended to keep lending interest rate as minimum as 9% therefore FDR interest rate will also decline which will 
ul�mately reduce total investment income in the insurance sector.

Impact on Cost Centers
In 2019, non-life insurers in Bangladesh agreed not to give more than 15% commission to agents. Since these field 
agents are poorly paid, they now have less mo�va�on to go out in the field and bring new business amid COVID-19 
outbreak. So it’s expected that agent commission expenses may go down. Some insurance companies may go for 
salary cut during this COVID-19 pandemic which could result in lower indirect management expenses. Overall, it is 
expected that benefits of cost savings will be counterbalanced to some extent by higher level of revenue de-growth. 
During pandemic condi�on, life insurance sectors claim expenses rises beyond average level.
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Shock in the distribu�on channel
Field agents are the main driver for crea�ng new business and con�nuous flow of premium income. These individuals 
are involved in distribu�on of life insurance policies to customers by the way of field sales involving visi�ng the 
person's home or office. Face-to-face sales are considered the forte of insurance agents since policy terms and condi-
�ons are tougher to be explained over the phone or even online. Due to halted economic ac�vi�es it will be difficult 
for the field agents to bring new business.
 
Forced repatria�on of migrant workers
Mandatory Insurance for migrants was supposed to be a catalyst which will boost the premium income for 
life-insurance companies. Bangladesh faced a double problem due to shrinking global labor market amid the COVID-
19 pandemic, posing a threat to foreign remi�ances and at the same �me overcrowding the local labor market.

Low margin of solvency
The insurance sector of Bangladesh is not ready to pay compensa�on for the medical expenses and death of the 
pa�ent infected with corona virus due to lack of resources and funded assets. It is learned that there are no guide-
lines in the conven�onal insurance policies as the corona virus is new.

Source-[COVID-19 Impact on Bangladesh Economy by Lankabangla asset management, Poten�al for growth: Trans-
forming Bangladesh’s

insurance sector by PWC, Chapter four-Bima published by ministry of finance]

Business Risk Analysis
Insurance Risk
Insurance underwri�ng risk is the risk that the company will suffer losses due to economic situa�on or the rate of 
occurrence of an incident contrary to the forecast made at the �me of se�ng up the premium rate. The underwri�ng 
risk arises from death and some�mes due to permanent disability and cri�cal illness. The company may get exposed 
to poor risk due to unexpected experience in terms of claim severity or frequency, poor investment return, infla�on 
of business expenses and liquidity issues on monies invested in the fund.

The company manages these risks through proper underwri�ng, reinsurance, effec�ve claims handling and other 
claim control mechanism. Pricing is done in line with actuarial guideline, experience and the mortality exposure. 
Moreover, premium rates are being reviewed from �me to �me on the basis of claim experience. The company seeks 
to reduce its risk exposure by reinsuring certain levels of risk with Barents Re. The company avoids payment of 
fraudulent claims through claim inves�ga�on. Strict monitoring is in place to keep the outstanding balance of 
premium at a minimum.

Opera�onal Risk
Opera�onal risk may arise from error and fraud due to lack of internal control and compliance. Management through 
internal audit and compliance department controls opera�onal procedures. Internal audit and compliance depart-
ment undertakes periodic and special audit to review the opera�on and compliance of statutory requirements. The 
audit commi�ee of the Board subsequently reviews the reports of the Internal Audit and Compliance Department.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will be unable to meet its funding requirement. In order to reduce the 
liquidity risk the company has diversified funding sources and assets are managed with liquidity in mind, maintaining 
healthy balance of cash and cash equivalent.

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk which arises with the possibility that one party entered into a financial instrument, will fail to 
discharge its obliga�on and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The management monitors exposure to 
credit risk through regular review of credit exposure and assessing credit worthiness of counter par�es.

Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market prices. Company 
is exposed to market risk with respect to its investment.
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The company adopts a prudent policy in respect of investments. The company has made investments as per provi-
sion of the Insurance Act. The company also limits market risk by maintaining a diversified profile. In addi�on, the 
company ac�vely monitors the key factors that affect the underlying value of the invested securi�es.

Reinsurance Risk
The company seeks to reduce its risk exposure by reinsuring certain levels of risk with re-insurer. Re-insurer ceded 
does not relieve the company from its obliga�on to policyholders and as a result, the company also remains liable for 
the por�on of outstanding claims reinsured to the extent that re-insurer does not meet the obliga�ons under the 
reinsurance agreements. In order to minimize the risk, the company has obtained reinsurance cover from Barents Re 
with proven sound financial health.

Financial Risk Analysis
Opera�ng Performance
Opera�ng performance of a life insurance company is assessed using the audited financial statement and actuary 
valua�on reports. Both life fund and incremental year’s income excluding life fund is showing an increasing trend 
over the years under considera�on. Detail analysis of year’s income revealed that both 1st year & renewal premium 
has increased by 6.21% and 8.20% respec�vely in FY 2020. It is to be men�oned that, first year premium has 
increased mainly due to increase in premium from twelve years, fi�een years & above and group bima policies. 
Closer analysis revealed that Trust Life was able to add BDT 52.67 million in its life fund account in FY 2021; whereas 
BDT 39.44 million has been added in its life fund account in FY 2020. It has been observed that, claims under different 
policies has increased by 64.58% in FY 2021, which is higher than previous year. Among this claims, survival benefit 
alone consisted of 75.33% of total claim. On the other hand, surrender value has declined by 75.45%, which is a 
posi�ve sign for the company.

This is very common phenomenon that the amount of claim will increase over the period with business expansion. 
So the company should concentrate on genera�ng higher premium income every year to meet up the claims & 
management expense.

In FY 2021, the company earned BDT 307.63 million from underwri�ng premium & investment income out of which 
95.81% is derived from premium income and remaining is from investments and other income. Moreover, total 
income of the company a�er deduc�ng claim has increased by BDT 31.96 million in FY 2021 which is 10.94% higher 
than previous year, whereas it was increased by BDT 34.69 million in FY 2020 which was 13.47% higher compared to 
FY 2019.

During the year, total management expense of Trust Life has decreased by 10.93% whereas net premium has 
increased by 5.70% and therefore management expense ra�o has decreased to 64.84% in FY 2021 from 76.96% in FY 
2020.

Moreover, surplus from opera�ons have been following an improving trend mainly due to higher total income 
earned by the company as well as decline in management expenses.
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BDT in million   Year ended December 31
Selected indicators 2021 2020 2019
Pre-tax income 52.67 39.43 27.35
Pre-tax income growth (%) 33.56 44.18 240.86
Total income excluding life fund 307.63 293.90 282.00
Growth rate of total income excluding life fund (%) 4.67 4.22 17.52
Life Fund 123.16 70.49 31.05
Growth rate of Life Fund (%) 74.72 126.98 738.16
Total income including life fund 378.12 324.95 285.70
Total income less claim paid 324.09 292.13 257.44
Growth rate of total income less claim paid (%) 10.94 13.47 16.33
Growth rate of 1st year premium (%) 6.21 (6.75) 10.25
Growth rate of renewal premium (%) 8.20 32.60 25.36
Total Management Expense 191.11 214.55 214.09
Commission Expense 45.14 56.87 68.10
Management expense ra�o (%) 64.84 76.96 81.68
Surplus from opera�on 52.67 39.43 27.35
Opera�ng Ra�o (%) 82.42 85.94 89.57

Opera�ng ra�o measures a company’s overall profitability from underwri�ng and investment ac�vi�es. Opera�ng 
ra�o is following a declining trend and stood at 82.42% in FY 2021, which is lower than 100% suggests that Trust Life 
is able to generate profits from its overall opera�ons.

Earnings and Profitability
Analyzing the earnings & profitability indicators, it is observed that the growth of life fund of Trust Life is following an 
improving trend and stood at 74.72% in FY 2021. However, the company has experienced an actuarial surplus of BDT 
2.09 million in FY 2021, which is the difference between life fund & net liability. Since the valua�on disclosed a small 
surplus, no distribu�on of surplus is recommended as per actuarial valua�on report.   If there was a distributable 
surplus then the basis of distribu�on of surplus between the insurer and the policyholders would have been deter-
mined by the company on the recommenda�on of the actuary. However, among the net liability, policies with par�ci-
pa�on of profit comprises 92.64%, policies without par�cipa�on in profit comprises 4.13% and the rest are 
comprises by group term insurance, supplementary cover, substandard & extra occupa�onal risk and reserve for 
policies which may not have been included but have liabili�es including revival of lapsed policies.
It has observed that, Trust Life was able to secure higher revenue form 1st year premium by 6.21% & renewal 
premium by 8.20%. On the other hand, investment income of Trust Life has declined by 19.14% in FY 2021 due to 
mainly decline of profit on Fixed Deposit Receipts (FDR).

Further scru�ny reveals that, the company was established in the year of 2014 and therefore single premium endow-
ment policies have already started to matured. Moreover, an�cipated endowment policies will start to mature from 
the year of 2024. This situa�on will lead to rise in net liability for Trust Life. So, Trust Life should place more focus on 
building up its life fund to se�le down the ini�ated claims. AlphaRa�ng observed that, during FY 2021 net liability of 
the company stood at BDT 121.07 million against 13,931 number of policies.

AlphaRa�ng an�cipates that investment income of the company can be affected in consequence of having lower life 
fund. This above circumstances have chances to result in actuarial deficit for the company in future year. So, if the 
company wants to survive in long run, the company should take aggressive marke�ng strategy to increase their 
number of policies which will help them to sustain in future.



In order to increase company’s growth the company needs to increase adver�sement and publicity. In this 
par�cular year of FY 2021, Trust Life has spent BDT 0.52 million for adver�sement and publicity which is higher 
than previous year.

BDT in million     Year ended December 31

Selected indicators 2021 2020 2019
Gross Revenue 313.12 295.53 282.34
Gross Revenue growth (%) 5.95 4.67 16.75
Net Opera�ng Revenue 307.63 293.90 282.00
Net Opera�ng Revenue growth (%) 4.67 4.22 17.52
Pre-tax income / Net Opera�ng Revenue (%) 17.12 13.42 9.70
Expenses /net opera�ng revenue (%) 65.32 75.41 80.28
Expenses / average AUM*(%) 61.46 83.64 97.43
Underwri�ng claims ra�o (%) 18.33 11.77 10.78
First year premium/Gross Premium (%) 56.66 57.11 65.44
Renewal premium/ Gross Premium (%) 43.34 42.89 34.56
Net Premium/ Net Opera�ng Revenue (%) 95.81 94.86 92.95
Actuarial Surplus** 2.09 - -
Net premium earned ra�o (%) 96.07 94.93 92.95
Net Investment income ra�o (%) 4.09 5.34 7.59

*AUM (Asset under Management)

**Actuarial valua�on report of FY 2019 & FY 2020 not received by AlphaRa�ng

Most of the other administra�ve expenses has observed to decline during the year, which resulted opera�ng 
expenses to decrease to BDT 145.96 million in FY 2021 from BDT 157.67 million in FY 2020. Moreover, though 
commissions paid to insurance agents has decreased by 20.63% from that of last year, s�ll gross premium has 
increased.

Net investment income ra�o is the ra�o of an insurance company’s investment income to its net premiums. The net 
investment income ra�o compares the income that an insurance company brings in from its investment ac�vi�es 
rather than its opera�ons. It is used to determine the profitability of an insurance company. Over the years it has 
been observed that, net investment income ra�o of the company is following a declining trend and stood at 4.09% in 
FY 2021 which was 5.34% in FY 2020. Further analysis revealed that the investment income is declining compared to 
increasing net premium of the company.

Asset quality & Investment
AlphaRa�ng observed that Trust Life has investment in Government Treasury bond and fixed deposit with banks.

As per Insurance Act 2010, a life insurance company has to maintain a statutory deposit of BDT 15.00 million with 
Bangladesh Bank. It has been observed that, Trust Life has invested 15.00 million in statutory deposit with Bangla-
desh Bank, which is in line with the regulatory requirement. Level of investment of the company is increasing over 
the financial years.
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In FY 2021, total investment of the company has increased to BDT 235.10 million from BDT 517.23 million in FY 2020, 
where fixed deposit with banks makes up 93.62% of the total investment por�olio & the remaining por�on of 6.38% 
comprise of investment in statutory deposit with Bangladesh Bank. In order to keep the risk at minimum level, Trust 
Life has invested all of their fund into Government Treasury bond and fixed deposit with banks.

BDT in million                                       Year ended December 31
Selected indicators 2021 2020 2019
Statutory deposit with Bangladesh bank (%) 6.38 9.09 9.38
Fixed deposits (%) 93.62 90.91 90.62
Govt. bonds/total bonds (%) 100.00 100.00 100.00

Overall total asset base of the company has grown to BDT 440.93 million in FY 2021 from BDT 342.74 million in FY 
2020 with a growth rate of 28.65%.

As per management informa�on, the above table is showing the assets held in approved investment i.e. govern-
ment treasury bond & FDR in accordance with sec�on 41 of the insurance act.

BDT in million                                         Year ended December 31
BDT in millions 2021 2020 2019
Total Investment 235.10 165.00 160.00
Investment income 12.04 14.89 19.88
Investment income/net premium (%) 4.09 5.34 7.59
Investment income/net opera�ng revenue (%) 3.91 5.07 7.05
Total asset/total equity (�mes) 1.73 1.76 1.47
Investment income/life fund (%) 9.78 21.12 64.03
Investment income/assets (%) 2.73 4.34 6.96
Investment income/claim (x) 0.22 0.45 0.70
Investment yield (%) 5.12 9.02 12.43

The overall investment por�olio of Trust Life is very conserva�ve and observed to improve over the years. The 
quality & yield of investment made by the life insurers is important to understand the ability to meet policyholder’s 
obliga�on. During the year, yield on investment of the company has decreased to 5.12%. Scru�ny revels that the 
decreased in yield on investment is the result of decrease in interest income by the company.

The investment income to claim ra�o demonstrates that the claim paying ability through investment income has 
deteriorated as investment income has decreased as well as claims has increased in FY 2021.
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Liquidity
      
BDT in million                                      Year ended December 31

Selected Indicators 2021 2020 2019
Liquid assets to claim (%) 658.25 807.49 825.20
Current Ra�o (x) 6.10 7.45 6.42
Current Assets to Life Fund (x) 1.35 2.06 3.73

An insurer’s ability to respond to the policyholders, on the event of drawdown of liabili�es, depends upon the assets 
that the company is holding. However, 53.32% of the total assets are invested in fixed deposit & Treasury bond and 
therefore there is low risk for the company during liquida�on. The company’s liability por�olio comprise of 27.93% 
life fund, 57.83% equity and 14.24% consist of short & long term liability.

Liquid assets to claim ra�o is following a declining trend over the years and stood at 658.25% in FY 2021. The main 
reason for such decline is, liquid assets has increased by 34.16% whereas claims has increased by 64.58%, which 
caused deteriora�on in this ra�o. Current ra�o has decreased to 6.10 �mes in FY 2021 from 7.45 �mes in FY 2020. 
However, the ra�o is sufficient to meet the current obliga�ons. Current assets to life fund has decreased in FY 2021 
compared to prior year and also following a declining trend, as Trust Life’s current assets against life fund 
(obliga�ons) is increasing at a slower pace.

Reinsurance

BDT in million                                        Year ended December 31
Selected indicators 2021 2020 2019
Total Reinsurance 5.49 1.63 0.34
Reinsurance to gross Premium (%) 1.83 0.58 0.13

Reinsurance policy is a prescribed way of reducing uncertainty involved in insurance; it reflects the risk appe�te of 
an insurance company. As per Insurance Act 2010 (sec�on 20), every insurer registered and conduc�ng insurance 
business in Bangladesh shall reinsure, on generally acceptable terms and condi�ons, such por�on of its insurance 
business as it cannot retain on its own account. The whole or any por�on of the re-insurable life insurance business 
may be reinsured with any insurer outside Bangladesh. Trust Life seeks to reduce its risk exposure by reinsuring 
certain levels of risk with re-insurer. To minimize the risk, Trust Life has signed re-insurance agreement with Barents 
Re.

In FY 2021, an improvement has been observed in re-insurance percentage and stood only at 1.83%. This low 
re-insurance might help the company to generate higher profitability in short-term but may detrimental to long-
term profitability. So, the company should caucus about the re-insurance policy.

Underwriting

BDT in million                                          Year ended December 31
Selected indicators 2021 2020 2019
Underwri�ng process risk (%)* 98.31 - -
Life Expectancy (in years) 73.00 72.80 72.60

*Actuarial valua�on report of FY 2019 & FY 2020 not received by AlphaRa�ng

Prospectus - 226

TRUST ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LTD.



Insurance underwri�ng risk is the risk that the company will suffer losses due to economic situa�on or the rate of 
occurrence of an incident contrary to the forecast made at the �me of se�ng up the premium rate. Underwri�ng 
department is responsible for evalua�on of a risk, es�ma�on of poten�al risk exposure, determina�on of likelihood 
of loss and then make a decision whether or not to accept the applica�on for insurance. Underwri�ng is the primary 
step taken by an insurance company to earn premiums which is the main source of income for an insurance 
company. Underwri�ng performance of an insurance company is measured using underwri�ng process risk.

Underwri�ng process risk which determines financial loss related to selec�on and approval of risk to be insured is 
at high level due to low life fund compared to net liability in FY 2021. However, considering the overall life insurance 
industry AlphaRa�ng expects that all other life insurance companies are bearing this high level of risk. Life expec-
tancy of Bangladeshi people is increasing along with the changes in life style. Considering the overall situa�on 
underwri�ng risk of Trust Life is fair.

Capital Adequacy

BDT in million                                          Year ended December 31
Selected Indicators 2021 2020 2019
Statutory required paid up capital 300.00 300.00 300.00
Actual paid up capital maintained 240.00 180.00 180.00
Authorize capital 1000.00 1000.00 1000.00
Surplus/ (deficit) of capital (60.00) (120.00) (120.00)
Paid up capital to Minimum paid up capital (%) 80.00 60.00 60.00
Assets Market Value 440.93 342.74 285.70
Assets risk (%) 54.43 52.52 63.00
Insurance risk (x) 1.23 1.55 1.46

As per Insurance Act 2010 Sec�on 21 (Schedule 1), in case of companies incorporated in Bangladesh, life insurance 
companies are required to have BDT 300.00 million paid up capital, out of which 60 percent shall be paid by the 
sponsors and remaining 40 percent shall be public contribu�on. Paid up capital of Trust Life stood at BDT 240.00 
million at the end of FY 2021, which has increased from that of FY 2020 and there is s�ll a shor�all of BDT 60.00 
million paid up capital.

However, there is no strict �me limit of this capital adequacy requirement for exis�ng insurance company and the 
board of Trust Life is fully concerned with the requirement of capital maintenance. Considering the requirement of 
the insurance act 2010, it is under considera�on of the company to raise paid up-capital. As per management 
informa�on, Trust Life will increase its paid up capital within a short period of �me through IPO placement.

Asset market value of Trust Life has increased in FY 2021 which is a good sign for the company. The higher increase 
in paid up capital than assets resulted the asset risk to increase during the year. An insurance company by its nature 
itself falls under high risk business category. The company’s insurance risk is BDT 1.23 against BDT 1.00 each under-
wri�en risk in FY 2021 which has slightly decreased compared to FY 2020.

Solvency
As per the Insurance Act 2010 Sec�on 43, for life insurance “every insurer shall conserve the solvency margin for 
insurance business by the amount and with procedure prescribed by the regula�on” and “every insurer shall submit 
a statement of solvency cer�ficate preserved and prescribed to the prescribed authority by means of a procedure 
by the regula�on which is reserved by the life insurance holder and which is cer�fied by an actuary commencing to 
a life insurance business.”
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Solvency margin means the amount by which the assets of the insurance company, at fair values, are considered to 
exceed its liabili�es and other comparable commitment. The solvency margin func�ons as the company’s buffer 
par�cularly against the risk related to investment ac�vi�es. The key items in account of solvency margin are equity 
a�er proposed profit distribu�on, valua�on difference between the fair values and book values of assets. The 
solvency margin must exceed its minimum amount.
       
BDT in million                                                                         Year ended December 31
Selected Indicators 2021 2020 2019
Required solvency 2.51 3.09 2.39
Actual solvency 218.64 158.92 159.83
Solvency ra�o (x) 87.11 51.43 66.87

Solvency ra�o represents the regulatory minimum amount of solvency margin to be held by the insurance company. 
But, s�ll Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority (IDRA) have not prescribed any formula or guidelines to 
calculate the minimum solvency margin. Required solvency is normally calculated based on interna�onal prac�ce as 
4% of the liabili�es and provisions except life fund account. On the other hand, actual solvency margin is the actual 
excess of an insurer’s value of assets over its value of liabili�es.

Claims Analysis
Growing customer base of Trust Life has iden�fied “claims monitoring” as a key focus area. Various ini�a�ves like 
inves�ga�on of early claims etc. has taken to smooth the progress of claims monitoring plan.

During FY 2021, total claims of the company has increased to BDT 54.03 million from BDT 32.83 million in FY 2020 
with growth rate of 64.58%. This situa�on has led to increase in claim on gross premium ra�o in FY 2021. Trust Life 
should increase its gain on new policy and if the company is unable to increase its gain from new policies then claim 
on gross premium will con�nue to rise. Deeper analysis has revealed that maturity, death & survival claims has 
increased, whereas surrender claim has observed to decrease in FY 2021 compared to the last financial year.

One of the major por�on of income has been deriving from the investment ac�vi�es of the company which mainly 
facilitate the payment of claims. So, Trust Life should pay more a�en�on to increasing investment income in order 
to se�le down the claims without considering other source of fund.

Paying claims on �me is considered strength for an insurance company but the company should also show aware-
ness in improving gross premium earned in the same extent. Moreover, the company was able to improve its life 
fund over the years under considera�on but s�ll it is considered as low compare to the industry. So the company 
should also give concentra�on to increase the life fund of the company for future coverage of claims.

Actual solvency of Trust Life is higher than the required solvency, which proves that the solvency risk of the company 
is low, compared to the interna�onal prac�ce. Trust Life’s solvency margin stood at 87.11 �mes in FY 2021, which 
was 51.43 �mes in in FY 2020.

BDT in million                                        Year ended December 31
Selected Indicators 2021 2020 2019
Total claims 54.03 32.83 28.26
Claim on life fund (%) 43.87 46.57 91.01
Claim on net premium (%) 18.33 11.77 10.78
Claim on gross premium (%) 18.00 11.71 10.77
Investment income/claims (%) 22.29 45.35 70.35
Death claim as % of total claim 3.58 4.63 21.76
Surrender claim as % of total claim 1.60 10.69 3.68
Survival claim as % of total claim 75.33 84.34 74.56
Maturity claim as % of total claim 19.49 0.34 -
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BDT in million                                         Year ended December 31
Selected Indicators 2021 2020 2019

Death Claims
Claim Ini�ated 7.94 7.61 7.11
Claim Se�led 7.77 7.51 6.96
Claim Repudiated 0.17 0.10 0.15
Number of claim ini�ated 39 21 24
Number of claims se�led 38 20 22
Number of claim repudiated 1 1 2

During FY 2021, the company se�led claim of BDT 7.77 million. Out of 39 ini�a�on, 38 claims have been se�led in 
FY 2021. This shows that the company has se�led 97% of it ini�ated claims. Moreover, with the increased number 
of claim ini�a�on, number of claims se�led by the company has also increased. However, the company has repudi-
ated 01 claims in FY 2021. It has observed that, average claim se�lement period for the company was 71 days in FY 
2021, which was 69 days in FY 2020 & 75 days in FY 2019.

Bank Facilities & Credit History
Exhibit: Bank Investment: Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited (As on 22 March, 2022)

The company is availing banking facili�es from Social Islami Bank Limited, Mouchak Branch, Dhaka. The purpose of 
the facili�es are to purchase 03 nos. of vehicle for commercial use and to purchase of 01 unit of Toyota Axio for own 
use of the company. AlphaRa�ng has considered the above men�oned banking facility only while assigning the 
ra�ng.

Security
 • 40% equity on the value of the vehicle.
 • 30% equity on the value of the vehicle.
 • Personal guarantee of all directors and their spouses.
 • HPSM agreement as usual charge documents as per norms of the bank.
 • Hypotheca�on of the vehicle to be procured under bank’s finance.
 • Registra�on of the vehicles with BRTA in the name of Social Islami Bank Limited and Trust Islami Life Insur-

ance Limited.
 • First class comprehension insurance policy of the vehicle to be obtained.
 • One post date cheque covering the en�re facility including rent and 60 nos. of post dated cheque to cover 

the 60 monthly installments in advance
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Management and Other Qualitative Factors

Board of Directors
Trust Life’s board comprises of 14 directors out of whom 13 are non-execu�ve directors and 01 execu�ve director 
who is the Chief Execu�ve Officer. The Chairman & the Chief Execu�ve Officer of the company are different person 
with different roles & responsibili�es. The func�on of the Board are to established organiza�ons vision, mission & 
purpose, to provide proper financial oversight, to ensure legal compliance & ethical integrity, to create strategic 
plan, to manage resources responsibly, to enhance the organiza�on’s public standing, to strengthen the organiza-
�ons programs & services etc. The board is chaired by Mohd. Ataur Rahman Bhuiyan. During FY 2021, 05 (five) board 
mee�ngs were held

Executive Committee
The commi�ee is cons�tuted with a view to act as a bridge among Board of Directors and Execu�ves and to play an 
effec�ve role in establishing efficient, strong and secured business environment. The commi�ee is consists of 07 
(seven) members. Anower Husain Khan is the chairman of the execu�ve commi�ee. During FY 2021, 01 (one) meet-
ing was held by the commi�ee in order to formulate, amend & review policies for the company, to prepare various 
rules & policies regarding staff, officers & execu�ves such as service rules, recruitment, promo�on, re�rement & 
disciplinary ac�on, to prepare/review purchase & procurement rules & recommended to the Board for approval, to 
prepare & recommend plans for companies publicity/adver�sement in different media etc.

Claim Committee
The commi�ee is consists of 04 (four) members and Md. Zillur Rahman Mridha is the chairman of the commi�ee. 
The commi�ee is responsible to draw general policy guideline for se�lement of all types of claim, all claims above a 
certain level shall be examined and place before the Board with recommenda�ons for necessary ac�on, any other 
ma�ers rela�ng to claim etc.

Finance & Investment Committee
The commi�ee is consists of 07 (seven) members and Mohammad Abdul Hye is the chairman of the commi�ee. 
During FY 2021, 01 (one) mee�ng was held by the commi�ee. The commi�ee is responsible to formulate, amend & 
review rules & provide guideline concerning financial ma�ers of the company, to recommend annual of revenue 
budget for approved of the Board, periodical review of the budget recommend & suggest measures for budgetary 
control, to place & recommend of company’s funds in various schemes of scheduled commercial bank or in any 
other enterprise or other investment scheme & place it before with suitable recommenda�on.

Audit Committee
The commi�ee is consists of 03 (three) members and Mahtab Uddin Ahmed Chowdhury is the chairman of the 
commi�ee. The main responsibili�es of the audit commi�ee are to ensure that the systems of internal control’s 
func�on properly & report any non-compliance of control issues & suggest improvement, to ensure Internal Audit 
Department is organizes & func�on properly, to review the dra� report & accounts before submission to the Board, 
to review the external auditors findings arising from audits and to recommend to the Board steps to improve the 
system of internal control derived from the findings of the internal & external auditors report etc. During FY 2021, 
no mee�ngs was held by the commi�ee.

Development Committee
The commi�ee is consists of 07 (seven) members and Md. Jahangir Hossain Molla is the chairman of the commi�ee. 
During FY 2021, 01 (one) mee�ng was held by the commi�ee. The commi�ee is responsible to prepare business 
development policy for the company & get it approved by the Board, to consider proposal regarding new products 
of the company & recommend the Board, to approve opening of branches in different parts of the country within 
the framework of the company to promote business, to review the overall business performance of the company 
periodically etc.
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Shariah Council
Shariah is the brand of honesty, equity and integrity. The Shariah council provides with prudent guidelines and Trust 
Life run the company within the framework of shariah principle. Shariah council of Trust Life is headed by Principal 
Syed Kamal Uddin Jafree. Shariah council is responsible for planning review procedures to be adopted by the Islamic 
insurance & financial ins�tu�ons, execu�ng review procedures & preparing & also review of working papers, making 
socializa�on to the society of Islamic insurance par�cular and about Islamic economics generally. Discoursing & 
developing Islamic values in Islamic insurance, to endorse Sharish compliance manuals, to endorse & validate 
relevant documenta�on etc.

IT System and Automation
IT Department is serving Trust Life with all its needs for the informa�on communica�on technologies services. The 
company has established a full furnished IT department with experienced & expert IT professionals. Trust Life’s IT 
department is engaged in con�nuous development of technology such as so�ware system & network infrastructure 
of the company. Consequently, Trust Life has developed in-house life insurance ERP consis�ng with 20 modules 
including accounts & HR. Trust Life is using database technology Oracel & MySQL for database management and 
development where advance data securi�es such as database recovery manager and data guard have been applied 
to ensure database availability. Trust Life is keeping their data backup in three different loca�ons in daily basis.

All the branches of the company are connected over VPN & VPN over net. The company has introduced SMS no�fi-
ca�on system to the policyholders such as; policy acceptance no�fica�on, premium deposit no�fica�on, premium 
no�ce, lapse no�ce etc. Moreover, a digital policy documents archive is introduced recently & new files are also 
adding in the row accordingly. However, Trust Life organized hands-on training for the newly joined officials & also 
provide training if any changes in so�ware remotely or physically, if necessary

Human Resources
Currently there are 219 employees working in Trust Life. Apart from this the company has been providing various 
benefits to their employees such as employee’s provident fund, employee’s gratuity fund, group insurance, hospi-
taliza�on insurance & fes�val bonus. Employee turnover rate of the company is 5.17% in FY 2021, which was 9.14% 
in FY 2020 and 6.08% in FY 2019. Moreover, Trust Life offers training to their employees to make them more profes-
sional in different area of the work.

Corporate Social Responsibility
Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited recognizes importance of CSR in social and economic development of the Coun-
try. Through the process of implemen�ng CSR, it focuses on quality work environment, wellbeing of the workforce 
and their families as well as society at large. By CSR, the company always try to achieve trustworthy rela�onship with 
stakeholders i.e. encourage best business ethics & an�-corrup�on measures across the en�re company, insurance 
products and services are being designed and delivered in the way that sa�sfies the need of the clients, standard 
recruitment procedure to ensure transparent and quality employment selec�on process, standard working environ-
ment that encourages avoiding needless wastage of resources such as unnecessary consump�on of energy and 
unnecessary paper prin�ng etc., contribu�on to the na�onal exchequer as Corporate Income Tax, Withholding Tax, 
Stamp Duty and VAT etc.
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Company Information

Board of Directors

Mohd. Ataur Rahman Bhuiyan  Chairman
Iqbal Haider Chowdhury  Vice-Chairman
Md. Zillur Rahman Mridha  Sponsor Director
Md. Jahangir Hossain Molla  Sponsor Director
Ayaz Waris Khan Warisi  Sponsor Director
Rassad Abedin  Sponsor Director
Rahad Abedin  Director
Md. Maniruzzaman Molla  Director
Rafia Nusrat Khan Bro�  Director
Kasfia Nusrat Khan Purna  Director
Mohammed Ruhul Amin  Independent Director
Muhammed Abul Hashem, FCA,FCS  Independent Director
Belayet Hossain  Independent Director
Mohammad Gias Uddin  Chief Execu�ve Officer (CC)
 
Shareholders

Par�culars  % of Holdings
Chairman  10.00
Vice Chairman  10.00
Sponsor Director  36.48
Director   24.94
Shareholder  18.58
Total   100.00

Auditor
Kazi Zahir Khan & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Shamsunnahar & Wazi Complex, 8th Floor, Suite-9B,31/C/1, Topkhana Road, Segun Bhagicha, Dhaka-1000

Actuary
Afsar Uddin Ahmed M.Sc, Actuary from Ins�tute of Actuaries, London, FCA (Fellow of C C Actuaries, USA)
8, Duntroon Avenue, Epping New Australia 2121

Head Office
Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited
Paltan China Town (17th Floor- West Tower), 67/1, Naya Paltan, (VIP Road), Dhaka-1000 Tel: +88-02-49349639, 
+88-02-48313229, Email: info@trus�slamilife.com Web: www.trus�slamilife.com

• Business Risk Analysis
Analysis is segmented into two or three sub sectors:
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Industry Outlook Compe��ve Posi�on Opera�onal Analysis

• Financial Risk Analysis
• Analysis is segmented into four sub sectors:
• Earnings
• Cash Flow Genera�ng Ability & Debt Servicing Capacity Capital Adequacy
• Financial Flexibility
• Management/ Ownership/ Governance Risk Analysis
 It is one of the key elements of the ra�ng methodology since management decides what businesses to be in,  
 what strategies should be pursued and how these ac�vi�es should be financed.
• Ra�ng Commi�ee
 Senior personnel review each company to determine the appropriate final credit ra�ng.
• Review Modeling Assump�on
• Approve Company-Specific Adjustments

Ra�ng Outlook

POSITIVE Ra�ng may be raised

NEGATIVE Ra�ng may be lowered

STABLE Ra�ng is likely to remain unchanged

DEVELOPING Ra�ng may be raised, lowered or remain unchanged.

ST-4  ST-5
   ST-1
ST-6  ST-3
ST-1  Strong Capacity
ST-2  Good Capacity
ST-3  Adequate Capacity
ST-4  Weak Capacity
ST-5  Very Weak Capacity
ST-6  High Risk of Default

BB A             BBB

CC AAA          D

B AA           CCC
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AAA  Excep�onally Strong Capacity AA Very Strong Capacity

A Strong Capacity

BBB Low Expecta�on of Ceased or Interrupted Payments

BB Elevated Vulnerability to Ceased or Interrupted Payments & Key Financial Indicators

B Significant Risk of Ceased or Interrupted Payments Could Occur in the Future. CCC Real Possibility 
That Ceased or Interrupted Payments Could Occur in the Future. CC Probable that Ceased or Interrupted Payments 
Could Occur in the Future.

C Ceased or interrupted payments are imminent

Note: “+” or “-” may be appended to a ra�ng to indicate the rela�ve posi�on of a credit within the ra�ng category. 
Such suffixes are not added to ra�ngs in the ‘AAA’ category or to ra�ngs below the ‘B’ category.

..........................................................Disclaimer..........................................................
The Credit Ra�ng Report is the property of Alpha Credit Ra�ng Limited (AlphaRa�ng). The Ra�ng Report and all 
informa�on contained herein shall not be copied or otherwise reproduced, repackaged, further transmi�ed, trans-
ferred, disseminated, redistributed or resold for any purpose, in whole or in part, in any form or manner or by any 
means whatsoever, by any person without AlphaRa�ng's prior wri�en consent. The Credit Ra�ng Report and all 
informa�on contained herein is provided on the basis of informa�on believed by AlphaRa�ng to be accurate and 
reliable as derived from publicly available sources or provided by the rated en�ty or its agents. A credit ra�ng is not 
a recommenda�on to buy, sell, or hold any security and no investment decision should be made solely on the basis 
of a credit ra�ng. AlphaRa�ng may make modifica�ons and/or changes in the Credit Ra�ng Report and all informa-
�on contained herein at any �me, for any reason. Under no circumstances will AlphaRa�ng or its affiliates be liable 
for any special, indirect, incidental or consequen�al damages of any kind, including, but not limited to, compensa-
�on, reimbursement or damages on account of the loss of present or prospec�ve profits, expenditures, investments 
or commitments, whether made in the establishment, development or maintenance of business reputa�on or good-
will, cost of subs�tute materials, products, services or informa�on, cost of capital, and the claims of any third party, 
or for any other reason whatsoever, even if AlphaRa�ng has been advised of the possibility of such damages. Any 
person making use of and/or relying on the Credit Ra�ng Report and all informa�on contained herein hereby 
acknowledges that he has read this Disclaimer and has understood it and agrees to be bound by it.

....................................................................................................................

© Alpha Credit Ra�ng Ltd 2022
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CHAPTER (XXVIII): PUBLIC ISSUE APPLICATION PROCEDURE

Step-1 (Applicant):
1. An applicant for public issue of securi�es shall submit an applica�on/buy instruc�on to the Stockbroker/ 

Merchant Banker where the applicant maintains customer account, within the cut-off date (i.e., the subscrip�on 
closing date), which shall be the 25th (twenty fi�h) working day from the date of publica�on of an abridged 
version of the prospectus.

2. The applica�on/buy instruc�on may be submi�ed in prescribed paper or electronic form, which shall contain the 
Customer ID, Name, BO Account Number, Total Amount and Category of the Applicant. 

 a) Eligible investors shall submit an applica�on through the electronic subscrip�on system of the exchange(s) 
and deposit the full amount intended to subscribe by the method as determined by exchange(s).

 b) The General Public and Non-resident Bangladeshi (NRB) applicants shall submit the applica�on in the 
electronic subscrip�on system of the exchange(s) through the Stockbrokers/Merchant Bankers where the 
applicant maintains customer account.

Step-2 (Intermediary):
3. The registered Stock broker/Merchant Banker in the ESS shall:

 a) Post the amount separately in the customer account equivalent to the applica�on money;

 b) Accumulate all the applica�ons/buy instruc�ons received up to the cut-off date and transfer the amount to 
their respec�ve Consolidated Customer Account;

4. The registered Stockbroker/Merchant Banker in the ESS shall prepare category wise lists of the applicants 
containing Customer ID, Name, BO Account Number and within 3 (three) working days from the cut-off date, 
upload to the ESS, the lists of applicants in electronic (text format with �lde ‘~’ separator) format, deposit the full 
amount received from the General Public and Non-Resident Bangladeshi (NRB) applicants by the method as 
determined by exchange(s).

5. The applica�on/buy instruc�ons shall be preserved by the Stock broker/Merchant Bankers up to 6 (six) months 
from lis�ng of the securi�es with the exchange.

6. The Exchanges shall prepare a consolidated list of the applica�ons and send the applicants’ BOIDs in electronic 
(text) format in a CDROM to CDBL for verifica�on on the next working day.  CDBL shall verify the BOIDs as to 
whether the BO accounts of the applicants are ac�ve or not, verify more than two applica�ons by an individual; 
verify more than two applica�ons using same bank account and investment criteria.

7. On the next working day, CDBL shall provide the Exchanges with an updated database of the applicants containing
BO Account Number, Name, Addresses, Parent s’ Name and Joint Account informa�on along with the verifica�on 
report.

8. A�er receiving verifica�on report and informa�on from CDBL, the Exchanges shall scru�nize the applica�ons, 
prepare category wise consolidated lists of valid and invalid applica�ons within 5 (five) working days.

9. Within next working day, the Exchanges shall provide the Commission, Issuer and Issue Manager with the so� 
copy of subscrip�on result.
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Step-3 (Issuer):
10. The Issuer and issue manager shall post the final status of subscrip�on on their websites within 6 (six) hours and 

on the websites of the Commission and Exchanges within 12 (twelve) hours of receiving informa�on by the 
Commission and the Exchanges.

11. Within 3 (three) working days of receipt of the subscrip�on result, the Issuer and Exchanges shall:
 a) Process pro-rata allotment of securi�es to the General Public and Non-Resident Bangladeshi (NRB) applicants;
 
 b) Prepare category wise lists of invalid applicants who are subject to penal provisions as per condi�ons of the 

consent le�er issued by the Commission in electronic (text format with �lde ‘~’ separator) format men�oning 
the penalty amount against each applicant;

 c) Issuer shall issue allotment le�ers in the names of allo�ees in electronic format and

 d) Issuer shall credit the allo�ed shares to the respec�ve BO accounts on the basis of allotment data (BOID and 
number of securi�es) via their CDBL VeDAS Terminal.

12. 15% Private Offer to employees of the Issuer:
According to the compliance with the provisions of the Commission’s No�fica�on No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2009-
193/27/Admin/127 dated 19 July 2021, applica�on process of the ‘employees & others’ category of the issuer in 
the ini�al public offering (IPO) through ESS of the Exchanges shall be conducted as follows: 

a. The issuer shall upload the list of the exis�ng employees in the electronic subscrip�on system of the 
exchange(s) in electronic (text format with �lde ‘~’ separator) format containing Customer ID, Name (as per 
BO ID), BO ID, Total Quan�ty, Total Amount, Category of the Applicant, NID, Employee ID, Service Start Date 
and Designa�on.

b. The exis�ng employees of the issuer shall submit applica�on in the electronic subscrip�on system of the 
exchange(s) through the Stockbrokers/Merchant Bankers where the applicant maintains customer account.

c. The registered Stockbroker/Merchant Banker in the ESS shall upload the lists of exis�ng employees of the 
issuer in electronic (text format with �lde ‘~’ separator) format.  

d. The Exchanges shall verify (name, BO ID, amount, duplicate, etc) the applica�ons of exis�ng employees and 
send the valid BOIDs in electronic (text) format to CDBL for verifica�on. CDBL shall verify the BOIDs as to 
whether the BO accounts of the applicants are ac�ve or not.

e. CDBL shall provide the Exchanges with an updated database of the applicants containing BO Account Number, 
Name, Addresses, Parent s’ Name and Joint Account informa�on along with the verifica�on report.

f. The Exis�ng employees of the issuer whose applica�ons are valid and ac�ve will be allo�ed securi�es as per 
their applied quan��es, subject to a lock-in period of 2 (two) years from the first trading day at the 
exchanges.
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Step-4 (Intermediary):

13. On the next working day, Exchanges shall:

 a) remit the number of allo�ed applicants to the Issuer’s respec�ve Escrow Account opened for subscrip�on  
  purpose;

 b) send the penalty amount who are subject to penal provisions to the Issuer’s respec�ve Escrow Accounts  
  along with a list; and

 c) Distribute the informa�on and allotment le�ers to the stock broker/Merchant Bankers concerned in electronic 
  format with a request to refund the balance applica�on money.

14. On the next working day of receiving the documents from the Exchanges, the Stockbrokers/Merchant Bankers 
shall refund the excess applica�on money in the customer accounts and inform the applicants about allotment 
of securi�es. 

Miscellaneous:
15. The Issuer, Issue Manager(s), Stockbrokers, Merchant Bankers and the Exchanges shall ensure compliance of the  
 above.

16. The Issuer shall pay the costs related to process the Eligible Investors allotment if claimed by the Exchange 
concerned up to an amount of Tk. 2,00,000/- (Taka Two Lac) only and Tk. 8,00,000/- (Taka Eight Lac) only for 
processing the applica�ons of General Public and Non-Resident Bangladeshi (NRB) applicants.

17. The Stockbroker/Merchant Bankers shall be en�tled to a service charge of Tk. 5/- (Taka five) only per applica�on 
irrespec�ve of the amount or category for the service provided �ll withdrawal of the money. The service charge 
shall be paid by the applicant at the �me of submi�ng an applica�on.

18. The Exchanges shall provide the Issuer with a statement of the remi�ance. 

19. The Issuer shall send the penalty amount to the Commission through a bank dra�/payment order issued in favor 
of the Bangladesh Securi�es and Exchange Commission.  

20. The concerned Exchanges are authorized to se�le any complaints and take necessary ac�ons against any 
Stockbroker/Merchant Banker in case of viola�on of any provision of the public issue applica�on process with 
in�ma�on to the Commission.   



Prospectus - 238

TRUST ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LTD.



Prospectus - 239

TRUST ISLAMI LIFE INSURANCE LTD.

CHAPTER (XXIX): OTHERS

DECLARATION REGARDING COST AUDIT

This is to inform you that Ministry of Commerce in its Gaze�e dated 12th January, 2003 ordered 5 companies from 
power sector and 6 companies from jute sector would be under Cost Audit Compliance. Later on, 3rd December 2009 
Ministry of Commerce issued Gaze�e by which 42 companies from Garments and Tex�les sector, 12 companies from 
Pharmaceu�cal sector and all the companies involved in manufacturing of Chemical Fer�lizer would be under Cost 
Audit Compliance.

Since Trust Islami Life Insurance Limitedis not bracketed in above men�oned companies, Cost Audit by Cost and 
Management Accountants is not applicable for “Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited”.

Sd/-
Mohammad Gias Uddin
Chief Execu�ve Officer 
Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited

Sd/-
Md. Riyad Ma�n
Managing Director
BMSL Investment Limited

Date: March 02, 2021

Sd/-
Md. Anwar Hossain Bhuiyan

Chief Financial Officer
Trust Islami Life Insurance Limited




